G

therefore all his brigades and detachments, including the
force under Nuwab Jumshesd Khan, he approached the
city by the route of Bindur, Naolee, Bhagrota, (*) &o.
marching leisurely with occasional halts, and levying
contributions as he went along, ¥n this manner, the
Ameer came to Jhulaee and Jugutpoora, (*) only three
kos from Jypoor, and encamped there. Manjee Das
seeing this, got together the Jypoor army, and brought
it to a position under protection of the fort of Motee-
Doongree, () which is a kos and a half from Jypoor,
and put the gates and fortifications of the city in a
condition for defence. After remaining in position
two or three days, thinking himself unable to meet the
Ameer in the field, he suddenly broke up his camp, and
retarned with all his troops to within the town, and
setting all the forts about it in a state of defence,
addressed circulars to all the Thakoors, and dependents of
Jypoor, to collect for the defence of the capital. In the
little garden of Nuseean, (4) to the right, he posted the
Nagas, and in the Majee’s Garden to the left, the Jypoor
special troops. Thakoor Chand Singl's troops were in
the Bhut Garden (%) in front of the Ameer’s line of ap-
- proach. Having made these dispositions, Manjee Das
shut the city gates, and. raised field works outside for the
defence of the ground taken np. The Ameer came up in
the morning, with the brigade of Raja Buhadur Lal Singh,
antl the horse of his special corps; and with drag ropes to
his guns, availing himself of the low ground of a nulla,
he forthwith attacked Chand Singh’s position at the Bhut
Garden, and after a hot fire of artillery carried it by
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‘storm, with great slaughter 'to the enemy. Erom this

point he began making his approaches, Chaud Siagh, with
" his defeated troops, took refuge under the city wall,
Colonel Mehtah Khan was directed, simultaneonsly with
the ahove operation, fo proceed against the Nagas at
Nuseean Bagh, and he met with equal success, dislodging
them from their works, and occupying the post himself.
The Nagas, however, having taken up a new position in
a little Garden between their old ground and the city,
the Ameer directed them to be dislodged from that point
also, which was effected with much intrepidity by the
Colonel, and with considerable slaughter of the enemy.
Here also approaches were commenced —against the
city, but as the gronnd was much exposed, and within
reach of the guns of Motee oongree, which took the
post in flank, the Colonel after losing many men from
this fire sent to the Ameer for succour. 'The Ameer
went, accordingly, with his cavalry, with all haste to the
Colonel’s position from the Bhut's Garden, where his own
head quarters were established, and going towards the
fort of Motee Doongree, sent a hurkaru to tell the
garrison that, if they fived another shot, a storm of the
place would be ordered, and they must take the con-
sequences. Alarmed at this threat, they ceased firing
from Motee Doongree, and the Ameer having restored
confidence to Colonel Mehtab Khaun, retarned and threw
forward the brigade of Raja Buhadur Lal Singh to a
position in front of the Bhut's Garden, between the
Puthurooee (*) and Motee Doongree forts, where it was
within range of the fire from both these points, as well as
of that from the city, but was protected by the ditches
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and mounds of some gardens: there he commenced hig
~ main approaches for the reduction of Jypoor. Nuwab
Jumsheed Khan, and the Ameer’s father-in-law had been
direoted against the Majee’s Garden, and had opened
trenches-ﬂlgre, but while they were employed on them,
the e:’iemy_ made a sally from the garden, and with sach
elfect as very nealy to defeat this di_ﬁsion of the
Ameer’s army, - The Ameer, however, offering a prayer
to the Deity, in whose hands are victory and defeat,
arrived with a reinforcement, = and Ileading- a charge
on the enemy in person, drove him f;‘lq.nl the field with

4560  APPROACHES MADE TO THE WALLS.

great slaughter, after which, the approalé'hes in tli_at,d'irec-
tion were cavried on without further interruption. The
Ameer now called in Meean Akhur Mohummud Khan,
‘with the detachment employed under his oxders, in making
collections in, Doongur Mularna, (*) and thus for twenty-
four days continued the siege of Jypoor. In this interval,
Manjee Das Puroheet, having assembled the forces of
all the Jypoor Thakoors, resisted obstinately any demand
'fb'; tribate, or for a money composition. Every day, the

 foraging parties of the Ameer’s army were attacked, and
he was much annoyed by the warfare thus carried on. At
last being much vexed at these annoyances, he ordered
a general bombardment of the city from all his batteries,
in order, that the pride of the enemy might be abated by
showing them the extent to which the means of mischief
were in his hands.

VERSES,
There is cause for vexation, our Chief foams with rage,
A storm’s on the brow of th’ Ameer of the age;
To the trenches and batteries galloping down,
He orders a salvo from all, on the Town;




HOMBARDMENT OF THE TOWN. 1", i

'The Cannoniers ready his word to obey,
Open fire with a vengeance—-"tis like the last day.
So served were the cannen, 3o many, so large,
Hell seemed broken looge, as they gave each discharge :
Earth shook to its centre—the welkin rung loud,
"T'was as if the last trump roused the dead in their shroud ;
The townsmen awe-stricken, in trembling and dread,
Ran sculking to corners where each hid his head;
The shot struck the Palace, the Mansion (') of air,
And Jugut Singh woke to a sense of despair ;
His Dewan he sent with contrition to sue,
The Basiegers would not the bombardment renew.
The Dewan with art and with flattering speech,
' Thus addressed the Ameer he was sent to 0'er reach—
“ 14 it fit "gainst the helpless that such boiling rage
. The bosom should fill of th® Aweer of the age,
' Like Roostum in courage, be like him a friend
Of the humbled : would youn bring ihis Raj to an end ?
You, that with Jugut Singh bave such kindness exchanged,
Why now seek his ruin, why now thus estranged ?
Man Singh owes to you the wiiole debt of his State,
- Confer on Jypoor obligations as great.”
Th' Ameer thus replied, ¢ To your Raja T bear
No malice in heart, nor for avght do I care
But money, hard money, the clamours fo stay
Of these hungry soldiers all greedy for pay—
"Tis the sine qua non of my quitting this Town,
I dare not depart without money paid down.”
To the Raja the Dewan reports this reply,
The Exchequer is empty, the Nobles are shy,
From them there is no bope of aid, in their pride,
Submission and payment they spurn and deride ;
¢ Let him bombard the Town, storm it too, if he durst,
Why buy his forbearance, let him do his worst :”—
The Ranee, a woman of prudence and sense,
Now excrted herself in her husband’s defence,

() Huwa Mubul, a building of seven-stovies, ‘or rather clusters of
little rooms or recesses, fitted with marble perforated screens for the alr
to blow throvgh in the hot weather and sains. :

.



iy Mo the Ameer she wrote, “ Of Man Singh you're the friend,
gl His brother I deem you, my honor defend,

' Be uncle, be father to me, in this need,

Forbear from this outrage which makes my heart bleed.”
Th' Ameer’s heart was wrang by the Ranee’s appeal,

The cannon no longer resound peel on peel—

Th’ Ameer has relented and gone to his tent,

The battery's silenced—the Rance content.

452  STOPPED AT REQUEST OF THE RANEE.

The facts were simply as follows-—the bombardment
was very destructive to the Townspeople, and the shot
from the heavy guns, fired in volley, reached even to the
Palace, and struck the Hunwa Mubul (Air Palace) and
other places of the Raja's own residence. Jugut Singh
was in despair and lost heart immediately, and sent
Larchhmun Chund, his Dewan, (') to negociate and stop
the hombardment. The Dewan supplicated the Ameer with
all hamility to suspend operations against the city. The
Ameer said that his army would never be induced to
march from before it without money, but if the Dewan
could satisfy them in that respect, it was all that was
desired, for he had no enmity against the Raja, nor other
cause of qunarrel with him, The Dewan returned to
Jypoor, and reported what had passed, but as the Raja’s
treasury was empty, and hig country all ruined, he had no
means of satisfying the demand made. 1In the height of
his alarm, he was preparing to evacuate the town and
his palace, and to retire to the fort of Amer, (*) to the
North, when his Ranee, the danghter of Raja Man
Singh of Joudhpoor, who was a woman of sense and
spirit, re-assured the Raja, and sent a message on her
own part to the Ameer, saying, “ Raja Man Singh is my

sl O plgene gnes O



THE SIBGE RAISED. 453

father, and your sworn friend. ¥ look upon you, there-
fore, as my uncle, nay as my father, do not bring me to
shame.” The Ameer, on receiving this humble message,
allowed his rage to abate, and stopping the bombardment
retarned to his quarters. Here he received letters from
Juswunt Rao Holkur's widow, begging him to spare the
Jypoor State, for it was an old one, of the first rank in
Hindoostan, and ought not to be destroyed or debased.
These supplications of the Baee were several times re-
peated, and the Ameer, reflocting that of a truth, if he
were to storm the town with his Afghans, its sack would
be a'great calamity, and nothing would come to his own
treasury, broke up the siege, (*) and moved by Sanga-
neer to Danga, (*) where he encamped. Thence he
continned his march to Hunooman Khera, (}) near Ma-
dhoorajpoor, where he cantoned for the rains. In order
to satisfy his men, who were on the point of mutiny for
their arrears, he raised twenty-five thousand rupees from
Mubmood Khan, as an advance upon the revenues of
Tonk, and forty thousand from Fyzoolla Khan Bungush,
as a like advance upon Sambhur and Nanwa, (*) and
matle over these places to them respectively. These events
bring down the Narrative to the Hejira year 1231. (°).

(‘%"I‘he Ameer broke up from before Jypoor in July, 1816. The
Dutbar bad been in negociation with the Resident at Dehlee, for the
Raja’s being taken under British protection since May, the negociators
haviog proceeded to Dehlee jost as the Ameer approached to attack the
city, Upon terms being conclud ed with the Ameer, the Dehlee negocia-
tion was broken off, and Sunkur Das, Manjee Das's brother, the principal
envoy, was dismisaed in the beginning of August, ;
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(¥) A. D, 1815, 3d December to 20th November, 1816,
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CHAPTER.

1816—-1817.
wa Ameer proceeds into the Jmul)'epoor terrztorzj—-

Disposes 'his Army to collect the revenues of Jypoor
— Returns thither after settling qffairs in Joudhpoor
—Lays siege to Madhoorajpoor whither Bharuth
Singh had carried the family of Mohummud Ayaz
Khan—captured by y him at Todurlee— Collects all
kis troops to reduce the place and is nine montfas
employed on tﬁe siege,

AFTER the death of Singee Induraj and As-Deonath,
Raja Man Singh’s son and heir, Koonwur Chhutur Singh,
acquiring the chief authority in Joudhpoor, put to deuth
the Singee's brother Goolraj, (') and raised to the head
of the ministry Ukhye Chund, (*) and others of the Nobles
and Thakoors of the faction, which had instigated the
assassination of the Singee, and which was pledged to pay
thirty lakhs of rupees to the Ameer. These men, how-
ever, on different pretences, evaded payment of the sum
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DISPOSITIONS OF TROOPS. 455

due. They also sent for Singee Futehraj, (') son of
Singee Induraj, and gave him the nominal ministry, in the
hope of getting from him some of his father’s treasure.
The Ameer seeing all this, made the following disposi-
tions. He sent Colonel Mehtab Khan, whom he honored
with the title of Roshun-ood-Doula, to be cantoned
with his brigade about Hindoun and Mohummud Gurh,
and to manage that neighbourbood. Raja Bubadur Lal
Singh was posted in the neighbourhood of Chundlaee, (*)
Lal-Sonth, Lye, (3) Luwaeen, Andhee, Bhoolaee, (4) &¢.
Nuseer-ood-Doula Nuwab Jumsheed Khan was cantoned
at Chaksoo (°) and Sheeodaspoora, (5) &ec. with his
special troops, and Mean Akbur Mobummud Khan’s
brigade. The Ameer moved in person towards Joudh-
poor, marching leisurely by Neemhura, (7) Chooroo, (%)
Hurha, () Tejoon, (*°) and Okraj-Deoraj, (') depen-
dencies of Jypoor, on which he levied tribute as he
passed, and thus came into the Kishengurh territory.
Thence by Maroot and Dundwana, (') bt came to
Chaeel, (") a village in Bapoo Sindheea’s Jageer, in the
Joudhpoor territory, where he encamped. The Ameer
levied a contribution on this place—at hearing of which,
Bapoo Sindheea, who was about Nagor, making collec-
tions, went to Moondwa, ('*) and Koocheera, (*%) villages
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456 LEVIES CONTRIBUTIONS, &c. IN JOUDHPOOR.

of the Ameer’s father-in-law’s Jugeer in'the Nagor couns
try, and levied contributions there in retalintion. As the
Ameer and Bapoo Sindheea were always on good terms,
and there was a comnexion between them by marriage,
the Ameer’s son Vuzeer ood-Doula being affianced to a
daughter of Bapoo Sindheea’s, the Ameer did not choose
to quarrel on this ground, but left the Jageer, and march-
ing by Kochawun, (') Thakoor Sheeonath Singh’s Jageer,
and by Malodh, (*) a village in the Jageer of Ibraheem
Khan, an officer of Man Singh, and then by Mukree, (3)
Chundeol, (4) and other places belonging to the Joudh-
poor: Raja, he came to Raee-sen, (%) which belonged
to  Roop ‘Singh, a Joudhpoor Chief. The Ameer
levied contributions at all these places, and besieg-
ed the fort of Raee-sen, extorting from the Chief an
engagement for tribute. From this point, he sent on
Raee Data Ram to Koonwuar Chhutur Singh at Joudhpoor
to negociate for the liqunidation of his claims, and in the
interim, proceeding by forced marches to Surmanee, (°)
a dependency of Joudhpoor, he laid siege to it, in order
to punish its owner for turbulence shown in his conduct
to Mohummud Ayaz Khan. Having opened trenches,
he carried the place after a short: resistance, and found
there mach booty. From thence he made a few marches
in advance, in the direction of Madol, (7) a dépendency
of Khalee Rao, under Joudhpoor, and met there Bapoo
Sindheea, whose army was encamped only two or three
kos from that of the Ameer. The Bapoo sent a Vukeel
to negociate for the Ameer’s evacuation of the Joudhpoor
country. The Ameer out of his old regard for this officer,
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received the proposition favorably, and entered into
terms with him. Accordingly he marched leigurely to
Madol in Joudhpoor, where he received letters from Raes
Data Ram, announcing, that wpon the condition of

evacuating the country, the money matter might be settled -

favorably.  Deeming it expedient therefore fo return,
the Ameer marched to Pye, (*) where he was met by the
Raee, who informed him, that one lakh and fifty thousand
rupees had been agreed to be paid, if he would leave
‘Marwar. The Ameer confirmed this settlement, and
sent back the Raee, with his own father-in-law, Mobum-
mud. Ayaz Khan, to realize the money from Futehraj,
the Joudhpoor minister.  Ile then marched to Hurmara,
in Kishengurh, and levied tweuty thousand rupees from
the Raja of that territory.

- In the midst of this, Mehummud Sacod Khan, Kootab-
ood-Deen Khan, and other Afreedee Rusaladars, showed
a disposition to mutiny for their arrears, and encamped
at the distance of a kos from the rest of the Ameer’s
army. In consequence of the terms they were on with the
Rampoor Afghans, they could not proceed to violence
against the Ameer's person, but they contrived by em-
ploying Mohummud Saeed Khan, as if to negociate, to
inveigle the Ameer into their power: that Afghan per-
suaded him by professions of attachment and fidelity, to
go with him to give the Afreedees some assuraunces, which
he said would satisfy them. Je was thus seized and
subjected to severe restraint, his private servants being
admitted with great difficulty to attend him. The Ameer
was, by this treatment, compelled to give the security of
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458 QUARREL WITH THE CHIEF OF MADHOORAJPOOR.

Meean Akbar Mohummud Khan to the Afreedees, for five
fakhs of yupees, and so settled their claims, and procured
his reléase.

The Zumeendar of Ludana, Thakoér "Bharuth Smgh(l)
by namé, a dependent of Jypoor, having got possess
sion of the fort of Madhoorajpoor, which' had been as-
gigned in Jageor to Raja Jugat Singh’s Rathor Ranee,
had the aadacity to carry away the family of Mohummud
Ayaz Khan, the Ameer’s father-in-law, from the fort of
"Todutnee (°) in Jypoor, where he had deposited them in
reliance on the friendship of the Thakoor, to whom the
place belonged. Bharath Singh bavieg some how got
them into his power, carried both wives and children to
Madboeorajpoor, and would listen {0 no terms of accom-
modation for their release. The Ameer was induced by
this to determine on the attack of Madhoorajpoeor, and
moving by the route of Chooroo-Bhagee to Bharma, (%)
he commenced a negociation, in the first instance, for their
release.  Such, however, was the insolence and pride of
this man, and such the cunning and turbulence of his
charactér, that keeping the Ameer amused with profes-
siong, until the corn was ripe, and he had laid in a store
of provisions for a siege, he then retracted all his promises,
and declared his determingtion to make no terms. The
Ameer, therefore, marching by Ranoulee, (*) came to the
fort; and encamped before it, and, sending for the brigades
of Raja Bubadar Lal Singh, of Meean Akbur Mobummud
Khan, of Muhlniood ‘Khan, and likewise for the cavalry
attached to Mohummud Jumsheed Khan, and for the horse
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SIEGE OF THE PLACE—FRIRST STORM FAILS. 459

at Perawa, under his Chela Himmut Khan, from their res-
pective cantonments and garrisons, he invested the place
on all sides. The supplies of the garrison were effectu-
ally cut off, and every day there were attacks or sallies,
and close fighting, attended with slaughter, to the besieg-
ed, as well as to the besiegers.

. After a long time spent in this manner, little
advance was made towards the capture of the place;
whereupon the Ameer called a couneil of all his
officers, and asked their advice. They recommend-
ed, that the wall should be knocked down completely
‘on one side, and when there was @ wide breach, the
place should be stormed on all sides, and not merely
at ‘the breach, in the hope, that entrance might be
found somewhere, while the attention of the besieged
was directed to that point. This plan being approved by
the Ameer, bis heavy guns were placed in battery. The
wall was not sufficiently ‘breached for the purpese intend-
ed, when a party of Afghans from Iahool, who did not
understand Hindee, thought the time was come to storm,
and went up from the trenches for the purpose. The
‘rest of the troops ran to support them. The besieged
seeing this, threw into the ditch choppers of thatch, half
‘burnt, with other combustibles, and epeped a tremendous
fire on the men as they advanced, so that a great number
of the Kaboolees were killed and wounded. The assail-
‘ants discovering mo breach that was practicable, in con-
‘sequence of the wall notbeing sufficiently broken down,
and of the fire from these straw choppers and other com-
bustible materials, were obliged to return. At this time
the Ameer, who was riding round as usual, to inspect the
different lines of approach, and batteries, discovered the
storm to be made without orders in the manner stated,
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and though he put the men of Kabool under arrest for
the disobedience and breach of discip‘line ‘of which they
bad bégn'-guilty, and reprimanded them severely, yet he
felt that his plan was no longer practicable. The arrow:
that has once flown from the bow-string will not return,

460 = STATE ORF AFFAIRS AT JOUDHPOOR.

The siege of Madhoorajpoor was become a source of
groat anxiety and trouble to the Ameer, for since his
army had been collected round the fort, there was no
revenue realized in the Jypoor territory, and the Joudh«
poor oflicers quarrelling among one another, Futehraj,
the son of Singee Induraj, had retired from the ministry,
and the amount settled with him remained still unpaid.
There was thus extreme distress in the camp for money.
However, Raee Data Ram, Mohumwud Umur Khan,
and the Ameer’s father-in-law, Mohummud Ayaz Khan,
obtained, with great diplomatic skill, a lakh and a half of
rupees from Koonwur Chhutor Singh, and brought it to
the Ameer. They reported at the same time, that Raja
Man Singh had formally abdicated, and that the Koon-
wur was raised to power, and had sent for Futehraj, the
‘son, after slaying Goolraj, (*) the brother of Singee Induraj,
merely with the ‘design of over-reaching and extorting
‘money from him. = They likewise stated, that the scheme
had been successful so far, that some money bad been
obtained from Futehraj, and that he had gone to Meer-
‘tha to raise a farther sum, but made off from thence,
through an intrigue of the men of Holkur’s train of
artillery, headed by Dan Singh, commander of a Joudh-
poor brigade.

—

(*) The death of Goolraj, brother of Singes Indiraj, was reported
from Deblee in the beginning of May, 1817, by which time the fact of
Raja Man Singh having been reduced to a eypher, and set aside as
neompetent, was likewise known.



SECOND STORM OF MADHOORAJPOOR ALSO FAILS. 461

' The Ameer being made acquainted with all these affairs,
divided the money he had recovered amongst his troops,
and made preparations for another storm, for which pur-
pose he ordered the artillery-men to direct the fire of the
heavy guns, so as to destroy a large portion of the wall,
and level it with the ground. The Ameer was himself
intent upon the execution of this order, going to the
breaching batteries frequently to witness the effect, and
he ordered all the commanders of brigades, and other
officers, to wait, until he should fire a rocket, which was
to be the signal for a general storm. The men of the
army were watching anxiously for this appointed signal,
but by an unfortunate combination of accidents, when at
last the rocket was sent off, instead of taking a direction
over the fort, g0 as to give notice to the troops on the
other side, as intended, the wind being adyerse, brought
it back over the camp, so that it was not seen there.
The troops therefore on the side where it was let off,
moved to the assault, and came boldly to the foot of the
wall, in confidence that their comrades were supporting
them onthe oppositeside, and were giving the besieged full

employment there also; but in this they were disappoint-

‘ed, the signal not having been seen, so the storm again
failed—the besieged resisting the assailants at the point
attacked with such determination, as to prevent effectually
‘any entrance into the fort. The loss on the Ameer’s sido
was very heavy, and seeing no prospect of success by
that mode of attack, he converted the siege into a block-
ade, and invested the place closely to reduce it by starva-
tion. 'These events occurred in 1232. (")

(*) A.D.1816—21st November to 11th November, 1817,
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. BOOK THE TENTH.
CONGLUSION,

. PACIFICATION OF INDIA BY THE BRITISH
' GOVERNMENT.

CHAPTER 1. (9

Qeneral Donkin advances with an English army through
 the Jypoor territory—Followed by General Ochter-
lony with another—The Ameer signs a treaty with

the English—measures to carry it into effect. |

T siege of Madhoorajpoor had now been going
on for nine months, and the garrison began to snffer from
the close bloockade, so that the place was on the point of
falling, when the English Government having collected
its armies from all gnarters, directed them against the
countries, which had been hitherto the scene of the Ameer’s
exploits and enterprises. Connected with the same
measures, a negociation was commenced at Dehlee with
Nuropjun Lal, (*) who bad for a long time been the
Ameer’s agent in attendance on Sir Charles T. Metcalfe,

(*) This Chapter commences with ten verses abont roses in bloom, &e.
which are desigued to celebrate the conclusion of the Ameer’s labours by
‘the peace with the English. : -
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ADVANCE OF GENERAL DONKIN'S ARMY. 463

the Resident there, and many promises were made to him
of ter.ritory' in the Dukhun, (') and of benefits innwmerable
to result from the Ameer’s coming into terms. A negocia-
tion being thus commenced, the execution of these fair
promises was held over, as to follow, eventnally, after a
treaty should be concluded, and a draft of engagement was
prepaved, and tendered for the Ameer’s acceptance, whickh
was conformable to the views of the English, but con-
tained none of the ohjects the Ameer had at heart. This,
however, was sent for his ratification, and at the same
time, General Donkin marched from Agra with a large
army, on the pretence of operating against the Pindaras :
but, coming by the route of Hindoun and Khooshalgurh,
within ten or fifteen kos of Madhoorajpoor, (?) he
effectually blocked the road, by which the Ameer could
have retired upon Kota towards the army of Juswunt
Rao Holkur; while General Ochterlony, with another
army, and a heavy train of artillery, advanced from
Dehlee directly upon Jypoor, and required under a threat
of military coercion, the ratification of the treaty at the
Ameer’s hands. At this time Fyzoollah Khan Bungush,
one of the Ameer’s old, and hitherto faithful officers and
companions, went over to the English with his Rusala of
horse. The Ameer began now to apprehend that his

(1) These Jageers in the Duklun and other acqnisitions, are mbore
Chateaux en Espagne, that the Ameer may have dieamed of, but certuin-
ly he had no promises, nor was any hope held out that he would get move
than the engagements stipulated.,

* (*) General Donkin first marched to Dholpoor Baree, while Lord
Hastings, with the Grand Army, moved to Seonda on the Sindh, to compel
Sindheea to declare himself. The treaty with him having been conclnded
in the first week of November, 1817, General Donkin marched towards
Boondee, in order to be prepared to meet the Pindaras, and prevent
their flight northward, towards Ameer Khian and the Rajpoot States, On
reaching this position, General Donkin was between Ameer Khan and
the army of Holkur, and within reach of sapport from Lord Hastings,
and the centre division. The Ameer was, therefore, us he says, effeetually
cut off, and sabmission was the ouly course left for him.

QL.



troops would seize hin and deliver him up to the English,
for.many used to talk, at this time, of the great benefits
resulting from accommodation with that nation, instancing
the case of Shooja ood-Doula, Vuzeer of Oudh, who had
come in and thrown himself upon them without any terms
or stipulations whatsoever—and what, it was asked, had
not his family got secured to them in perpetuity in
consequence? He further reflected, that there was no
guarter from which he could hope for any. effectual
assistance, if inelined to oppose the British Government ;
for, in the army of Holkur, there was great confusion
produced by the caprices and ill.conduct of Juswunt
Rao’s widow, Toolsee Baee, and if the Ameer were to go
there, he had reason to know that this worthless woman
intended to get rid of bim by treachery. She had, indeed,
invited him with this design, and had appointed armed
men, who were to murder him as he slept. Again,
General Malcolm was approaching the Iolkur camp
with a large army, and had already intrigued and brought
over many of the officers, such as Mohammud Ghafoor
Kban and others. The Marquess of Hastings also,
Governor General, was in person taking the road to
Gwalior, against the armies of Doulat Rao Sindheea,
while General Adams and General Marshall, (') with
their forces, were moving from Hoshungabad and Sagar
against the Ghoosla Raja of Nagpoor, in order to compel
that Chief to submit—and General (*) Elphinstone, with

0] b

464 THE/AMEER'S MOTIVIS FOR SUBMISSION.

(1) Geuneral Marshall and Colonel Adams were first employed agaiost
the Pindaras. The tormer marched from Bundelkbund by Sagnt wpon
Seronj, and the latter by Bhopal, by a route further west. It was aiter
completing this service, that these divisions were employed against the
possessious of the Nagpoor Raja. :

(*) 'The Hou’ble Moantstnart Elphinstone, Resident at Poona, a Civil
Servant on the Bengal Establishment, is the person kave reterved to.
The natives, who understaud little of the etignete and dictinetions of the
two professions, give him very gencrally the evedit of 1his battle; and look
upon bim as the Commauder in Chief in the operations against Bajee Rao,
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‘one’ brigade, had' already fought a battle, and defeated
Bajee Rao Peshwa. Yielding, therefore, to afl these
vongiderations, the Ameer determined on rafifying the
treaty, concluded by his agentat Dehlee with Sic Charles
‘Maetealfe, althongh the matter of the further promises
‘was still unsettled, and Nurunjun Lal was on return fo
Dehlee to negociate on the subject of them ; and notwith-
' standing that agents from Bajee Rao, and from the Baee,
widow of Fuswunt Rao Holkur, were in his camp, praying
for assistance, and the Pindaras too were expecting his
sapport. The Ameer had, in reality, no reliance upon any
‘of these, but patched up sach an arrangement as he could
with Bharuth Singh, of Madhoorajpoor, and obtaining
from him the release of his father-in-law’s family, he
broke up the seige, and marching to Neemahera, about
‘ten or fifteen kos distant, took up ground with great care
on the bank of a nalla in the vicinity, which, with its
ravines, offered a strong position.

The Ameer having made up his mind as to his future
conduct, ordered Raee Data Ram, who was at Jypoor
for the settlement of his affairs with the Raja, to proceed
forthwith into General Ochterlony’s camp. He joined
it at Sanganeer, haying Mohummud Umur Khan in
company, and it was there settled, that the Ameer should
have an interview with the General, at some suitable spot
between the two armies, and that matters should be dis-
cussed without any third party’s intervention. The village
of Ruswan (') was fixed upon for the interyiew. The
General on one side, and the Ameer on the other, mount-
ed on elephants, met with much pomp and state, showing

whaey O
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AGG INTERVIEW OF THE AMEER AND GENERAL,

' to each othexr reciprocalattention, When'the Ameer was

about an arrow’s flight from the General; the latter took

off his hat out of respect, and then from the top of the
elephant, he embraced the Ameer, (') whereupon salates
were fired, and the two Chiefs dismounting, refired to
tents pitched in the plain for the purpdse—the Genéral
coming on f5ot to that of the Ameer, so thal the inter-
view gave: the latter much satisfaction. Next day, the
Ameor' went to the General’d tents, and the General came
out on foot to receive him, and walked with him hand in
hand into the tent, and spared none of the attentions, and
tak-eﬁs of friendship and respect, which were due to his
rank, reputation, and character. The Ameer staid gome
time at this place, and was joined by Narunjun Lal
The General asked the Ameer for the ratification to the
engagement concluded at Dehlee. The Ameer said, he
could not sign that instrument, until satisfied in res-
pect to the further promises and hopes: held out to
him. He then, in' presence of the General, sent for
Nurinjun Lal; (%) and e¢onfronting him with the General,

(') The Ameer met Sir D, Ochterlony by agreement, on the 15(h
December, 1817, at a place called by the latter Rhyswal, but the Ameer’s
name for the village Ruswan will be the correct. The Ameer claimed
mmich more than was In the treaty, stating it to have been promised verbally
by Siv C. Metcalfe to his. Vakeel at Dehlee. Nurunjun Lal’s letters
were produced to support the claim, and himself afterwards called in.
Sir D, Ochterlony replied, that Lie was there to receive the ratified. treaty,
not to discuss freshi terms, A Jageer for the Ameer’s son, Vazeer-god-Donls,
awvas a principal item of these demands. The Ameer separated without
giving the ratified instrument, but next day, viz. on the 16th December,
ho brought it, and declared, he bad made up his mind to observs it impli-
citly, and had not like the infidels (meaning the Malrattas,) merely
signed to answer a present purpose, with the inteation of violating the
eonditions on the first favorable opportunity. Barring a Jittle importn-
nity for money, and for Jageers for himsell’ and his family, be was cer.
tainly as good as his word.

(*) The treaty conciuded by Lala Nurunjun Lal at Dehles io Novem-
ber, 1817, aud vatified afterwards by Ameer Khan on the 16th December,
was to the following effect:

Avticle 1st. The British Government guarantees to Ameer Khan,
and his heirs in perpetuity the possession of the places which he holds

3L
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dispatched to Mr. Metealfe a Khureeta, in which he
proposed to settle these matters with Sir D, Ochterlony,
thus holding the rafification in abeyanee until an angwer:
should arrvive from Dehlee. Mr. Metcalfe, however, who
was deep in the wiles of diplomacy, and was resolved still
to keep these promises in the back ground, wrdte to this
effect, -in the conclugion of his letter in reply-—¢ When
the treaty shall arrive with your seal in ratification, and
the instrument thus duly executed, shall be trapsmitted
to the head quarters of the Governor General, and peace
thus be established between yourself wnd the British
Government, you will then not fail to discover the advan-
tages attendant on the connexion, and the prosperity
that will result to your affairs. There will be no failure
on: the part of my Government to contribute thereto.”
After this the Ameer, relying on the known rectitude:
and fidelity to their word of British Officers, deters
mined that peace was: more adyisable than hostility
aecordingly he set his seal to the engagement, and sent
it to the General, who had undertaken td settle all pending

in the territories of Muharaj Holkur under grants from the Muharaj, and
the British Government takes those territories wander its protection,

20d,  Nuowab Ameer Khan will disband his army, with the exception
of anch portion a¢ may be requisite for the internal management of hig
possessions, A '

‘3rd. Nowab Ameer Khan will not commit aggvessions in any cauntry.

e will relingnish his connexion with the Pindaras and other p underers,
and will, moreover, co-operate to the utmost in his power, with the British
Government, for their chastisement and suppression. He will not enter
into negociations with any person whatseever, without the consent of the
British Government.
. 4th. Nuwab Ameer Khan will daliver up to the British Govarnment
all bis guos aud Military eqoipments, with the exeeption of swel a poi-
lion, as may be requisite for the internal management of his possessions,
and the defence of his forts, and shall receive in exchange an cquitable
pecnniary compensation. '

&th. The force which Ameer Khan may retain, shall attend at the
requaisition of the British Government,

6th, Provides for the exchange of ratifications within oue month.



QL.

matters, when once the ratified instrument should be deli-
vered. The Ameer thusleft it to Sir David OOhterluny to
Asettle every thing acceirdmg to !ns pleasure. : L

468 TREATY RATIFIED—MBASURES TO EX ECUTE 1T,

In the treaty it was stlpulated thal, the Ameer should
dispose of half his guns, and reduce the battalions of his
rlg&des, and his Rusalas of horse, retmnmg* only as many
troops as were requisite for the administration of bis own
tervitory; and aid of funds was promised to enable the
Ameer to effect this, and to give the men their discharge.’
The General, accordingly, opened a negociation with the =
Ameer on the subject of these stipulations, and went
with him to Lal-Senth, and Khooshalgurh, and the other
places in Jypoor, where were the brigades of Raja
Bubhadur Lal Singh, and Colonel Mehtab Khan, and
of Meean Akbur Mobuommud Khan, and then asked for
the guns attached to each, which were to be delivered
under the treaty.  The men at first raised a tumult, and
refased to surrender their guns, and two or three men
sacrificed their' lives before them ; but in the end, after
some explanations from the Ameer, they gave them up,
and received from him, in settlement of their arrears,
seven or eight lakhs of rupges paid by the General for
the guns.(’) © In the end the General, after taking
possession of the guns, entertained a number of the men
of the battalions and Rusalas, for service in Hureeana
gund. elsewhere—the intention of the British Government
being to'scatter the men, and break up entirely the force
raised, and organized by the Aumeer. Afterwards the
Ameer, relying on the hopes und promiseés held out to him

i,

(') The guns of Raja Buhadur's and of Mehtah Khan's brigades
‘were obtsined in the eacly part of March, 1818, but not until General
Ochterlony had carried his armr toa position hetween tliem, thieatening
te both, and thatleft them Lelpless,
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by the English gentlemen, transferred to the (reneral the
entire Rusalas of Mohummuod Umur Kban, and of his
father-in-law, Mohummud Ayaz Khan, and the horse
attached to Raja Buhadur Lal Singh, with seven or eight
battalions of trained Sipahees. At this time the Ameer’s son,
Vuzeer-ood-Doula, came from Sheergurh, and presented
himself to his fathor at Neemahera, in Jypoor, who being
delighted  to see and embrace him, sent him to the
General, who was encamped one stage off. Sir D). Ochter-
lony came out to receive him with all honor, and assigned
him a tent close to his own, treating him with great distinc.
tion and kindness. The particulars of his march to
Delilee, and of his residence there, will be given in a sub-
sequent Chapter.

The Nuawab Jumsheed Khan was, at the time of the

L Ameer's accommodation with the English, in the Shekha-

watee country, with ten or twelve thousand horse and
foot. Hearing of the Ameer’s having accepted the terms
proposed to him, he wrote reproachfully, and upbraidingly,
and setting himself up in independence, refused to
surrender his guns to the British Government. The
Ameer wrote to him in all condescension to endeavour to
persuade him to be reasonable, and to give up the guns as

stipulated in the treaty, but in the pride and petulance of

youthful presumption, he refased cbstinately to obey.
The General, seeing this, said to the Ameer—*This
man makes excuses, and refuses apparently to give up his
guns : give me your order to take them, it isall I ask.”
The Ameer said-— You are the master, do what you
will.? The General, accordingly, sent Colonels Knox
and Arnold, with Colonel Skinner, and a consider-
able force, to compell the surrender of the guns, and
then went himself alone to the camp of the Governor

S
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General, (') which was in march towards Gorukpoor, to
concertmatters in person with the Marquess of Hastings.
The Ameer sent Raee Data Bam, along with the G_fme_ral,' :
to head guarters, to discnss his affairs, making him the
hearer of a present of a sword to Ifis Lordship, with
other articles, as a peshkush. i

470  H1s GUNS RENDERED ON GOMPULSION.

As Jumsheed Khban still held out in his refusal to
sarrender his guns, and discharge his men, four battalions,
with a regiment of cavalry, and other troops under Colonel
Skinner, (*) went towards the Shekhawatee cnunfry—
against him, and Jumsheed Khan being defeated, their
pride was taken down, and the whole of that force was
dispersed, and its guns taken by force. In thig interval,
General Donkin, who had been encamped in the Boondee
country, advanced into Kota, and moved against ‘the
Pindaras, while General Malcolm acted against the A
armies of Muharaj Mulhar Rao Holkar, son of Juswunt
Rao, and the Honorable Mr., Elphinstone against Bajeo
Rao Peshwa, and General Marshall and General Adams
against ‘the Nagpoor Raja, each with his separate,
army or division, until heing victorious in the field, they
reduced évery where the enemies of the British Govern-
ment to submission. These events occurred in the Hejira
year 1232, (3)

——

(*) Sir DI O¢hterlony came by Dawk to the cawip of Lord Hastings,
towards the end of March, 1818, for the purpose of being invested with
the Order of Grand Cross of the Bath. He retarned iv the same manner
early in April. ; _

(*) Colonel Knox commanded this detachment—Colonel Skinner, with
his corps, was nnder his orders. Upon the Brilish_troopa advancing in
line, the conrage of the Afghans failed, and they dispersed nnd suiren-
deved their guns, ' kit
©(®) A D.1816, 21st November to 11th November, 1817, The events
related extend to March 1818, that is, to the middle of the following
Hejira year 1233, / e



L4

BOOK THE TENTH.

CHAPTER 1II.

1817--1818.

The battle of Mahedpoor between the ﬁ?iti\sh and the
army. of Holkwr—The death of the Baee, widow of

Juswunt Rao, by the hand of Huree Holkur, Jus.

wunt Rao's nephew—Defeat of the Holkur army.

TODLSEE Barn, Juswant Rao Holkur's widow, falling
in with the faction of Gonput Rao Dewan, caused poispn
to be administered to Meena Baee, (*) at Tej-Muhulpoor,
and so put her to death. She also endeavoured to seize
Tanteea Aleekur and others of the party of Meena Baee,
but he escaping, went first to ‘the tents of Nuwab Iftuk-
har-ood-Doula Mohummud Ghu-foor'khan, and thende got
to Raj-Rana Zalim Singh of Kota, who gave him protec-
tion. Seeing this, Toolsee Baee went into Gungrar, leav-
ing Luchmun Baee, who had been confined by Meena
Baee at Indor, and was party to Gunput Rao’s conspi-
racy, at the head of affairs in camp. '

. The artillery corps (Jinsee,) broke at this time into muti-
ny for their arrears, and seizing the person of Gunput Rao,

(') This was towards the close of the year 1816, She was first tor.
tured with a view to extort hier treasures, but revealed nothing,



472 INTRIGUES IN HOLKUR'S CAMP.

kept him in' restraint in their camp, treating him with
great severity. = At seeing this, Toolsee Baee rending the.
veil of womanly discretion and shame, and scrupling not
to show openly her afféction for Gunput Rao, satisfied the
artillery corps, by paying them up and discharging them,
whereby she procured through Bala Ram Seth, the release
of the Dewan from durance. The Seth and Dewan
were, however, at open enmity, and the Dewan indeed
‘was jealous of the ascendancy in the administration of
affairs, acquired by Bala Ram Seth, throagh his superior
abilities. By the agency of Taiteea Jog, the Seth was
geized and confined in the fort, and there secretly put to
death, (*) -w]iﬁé reports were industriously spread, that
he had made his escape. The Baee next plotted to get
into her power, and similarly make away with.the Nuwab
Mohummund Ghufoor Khan, but the Nuwab hearing of the
design, absented himself from the Durbar for a time,
‘ and farther encamped at a distance of three kos from the
Holkur army, for security against surprise. = In the midst
of these intrigues, the hattalions of Juswunt Rao’s old
brigades, hearing of the payment in full made to the men
of the artillery (Jinsee), came, under their respective
commanders, Roshun Beg, and Roshun Khan, Bheem
Singh, and Huzareéq"Poorbeea,-.to Gungrar, leaving the
posts and cantonments, where they were severaily sta-
tioned. Upon their arrival, they made tumultuous de-
mands of their pay from Toolsee Baee and Gunput Rao,
The Baee, however, intriguing with the Mahratta officers,
such as Ramjee Sindheea, Bapoo Lolona, (?) and other

. (") This ocenrred in Jaouary, 1817. Bala Ram was attached to the
Ameer’s party, and his death gave gveat nmbrage to all the Puthans,
and lo Ghofoor Khan, who was their head,

U b b el )
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~ Chiefs of the Paeogah, also with Meer Sudur-vod-Deen,
Kazee Boolagee, (*) Meer Murdan Ulee, and the Hin-
doostance Rusaladars, who remained faithful to her,
vesorted to force to quell the disturbance ; (*) and the men
of the battalions, seeing that nothing was to be gained
by tumult and mutiny, marched away with Ghufoor
Khan, and sctting themselves down abont Puchpuha, (%)
Jhalooa, (%) and other territories of the Holkur family,
seized on the revennes, and condueted the administration
for themselves.  Inthe same manner, Meer Murdan Ulee,
Sudur-ood-Deen, and other Chiefs of Hindoostanee horse,
seeing how ill affairs were conducted by the Bace, left
her, and acting under the advice of Nuwab Mohummud
Ghufoor Khan, went and joined him and the other troops.
But the Nuwab fearing for the discredit attending this

eourse of proceeding, and deterred likewise by strong

letters of remonstrance addressed to him by the Ameer;
~who enjoined submission to the Baee, ag a primary obliga-
tion, contrived insidiously, and by eunning, to separate
himself from the troops, and went off to Gagroon (%) to
solicit the mediation of Raj-Raua Zalim Singh to bring
about an accommodation 'between ‘all parties. Zalim
Singh, who was a man of discernment, indeed the Aris-
totle of his day for diplomacy, put himself in commu-
nication with all persons concerned, and advised that;
forgetting their animosities, they should all rejoin the
Holkur camp, and place themselves in submission to the
authority of Toolsee Bace. The Ameerwrote strongly to

3 o hu T
3 J g l:s (")
(*) The troops of the two fuctions turned out, and eaunonaded one
another towards the end of Jannary, or first week in February, 1817,
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i *i*o-éi-:snz BAEE-IS --ix‘titt”s FOR mn‘in" ﬁAo :

- Mohummud G‘rhufcor Khan, and to other oﬁicers thh whom_

'he had influence, to en,]om tha same course.

The Bace was at this time at Jhulra Pntun (*) with
the Mahratta troops, preparing to march to Foona,
upon @ requisition for succour, made through Vukeels
by Bajee Rao Peshwa. Here she was joined by all
" the ftroops, upon the accommodation mediated by the
‘Raj Rana. The battalions, however, hearing of  this
design of the Baee, insisted on receiving their arrears
of pay first.  They refused to march to the Dukhun
without, and raised a great tumult. The Bace exerted
herself to appease the mutineers, and even sent jewels
of value to all the principal officers of the battalions,
inorder to win them to her views. They, however, desir-
ing to keep the jewels for themselves, and fearing to be
‘called to account for the collections of the Muhals they
had seized and appropriated, gave nothing to the troops
from these funds, but commenced negociating privately
with the English for the ruin of the Holkur family and for-
tunes. Nuwab Iftukhar-ood-Doula Mohummud Ghufoor
Khan also opened anegociation with the English through
Hukeem Zufar Ulee, unknown to and separately from
the Ameer ; and so got assured to himself, as an indepen-
dent possession, the Muhals he was administering on
behalf of the Ameer's eldest son, the Nuwab Vuzeer ood-
Doula, whose Jageer they constituted. He even obtained
Sunuds for the same, from Generals Sir Thomas Hislop
and Sir John Malcolm, when these two officers came soon
after into Malwa with an army, and with full power to
seitle the affairs of that country. The management of

S ©
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the. "'J"ageer was in bis hands, s agent for the Nuwab
Vuzeer ood-Doula, buthe represented himself as holding
the lands for his own benefit, and so got them confirmed
o him), 1 i i

'The English Generals, having settled first their private
accommodation with these officers, wrote to the Baee, that
the British Government was now determined to put an end
to the system of plunder, and military violence, prosecuted
by the Pindaras and others, and expected that she would
dend the aid of the Holkur means to effect this objeet,
and wonld give up the fort of Galna for a Military depot,
besides furnishing supplies, &e. for the march of troops
through  her country, pending operations against the
Pindaras, or against the Governments of the Dukhun,
which might make common cause with them. The Baee,
on receiving letters to this offect, with the characteristic

. levity and caprice of a woman, not reflecting on the
little eonfidence to be, placed in her own troops, and
taking little trouble ‘to weigh her own strength in the
scales against the English power, took the high ground
of independence, and at the instigation of the Poorbeea
troops, consisting of recruits from Hindoostan, who had
the wind of conceit in their moostaches, and looked upon
war with the English as a pastime and child’s play, wrote
an evasive answer to deceive the Generals: while she
gave ont that, if the troops even should desert her, she
would yet go alone to Poona, and follow the fortunes of
Bajee Rao Peshwa, her Liege Lord. Two or three days =
after this was so given ont, the army marched to Mubed-
poor, (*) in execution of the Baee’s declared purpose.

sde O
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he  English hmkarus g-ave information | of the state
of things in the Holkur army, to!General Sir Thoma,s'
Hislop, and General Sir Johu Malcolm, who bad then
arrived at Oojoin, not very far off; they, accordingly,
marched to stop the Baee’s progress to the sonth,
ahd encamped at about four or five kos from the Holkur
troops. ' In the midst of this, the men of that army, in-
stigated by uree Holkur,(*) a nephew of Juswunt Rao,
geized the person of Moolsce Baee, and put her in a
palkee, and took the young Mulhar Rao into their own
hands.  They also seized, and put nunder restraint Dewan
Gunput Rao, who in vain mounted on horseback, and
attempted to get out of the way with Tanteea Jog, (*)
and having g0 mastered the whole party, they,in the end,
took Toolsee Baee to the river side, and put her to death:
Mulhar Rao Holkur they brought out into the Durbar,
and conducted affairs themselves in his name.

Notwithstanding the vicinity of the English army bow-
ever, these foolish men took not from their ears the cotton
stuffing of negleét, and ‘made no proper dispositions for

| battle, nor to meet the oceasion in any other way, so true
i Qg it, that allds planned az destiny wills,  In short, in the
very midst of the above events, the English army, headed
by aregiment of European cavalry; arrived at the bank of
the river, (the Seepra) which runs by Muhedpoer, and
there drew wup for action. Seeing this, the men of the
Holkur battalions, who were on the opposite side of
the stream, made ready to oppose the passage, and mount-
‘ing Muharaj Siwaee Mulhar Rao Holkar on horseback,
drew out their cavalry also in separate bodies. The

REEA.
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Nuwab Mohammud Ghufoor Kban was laid up witha
lame hand at the tinfe, besides being in secret under
engagements with  the English, but for appearance-sake,
he too n‘:ountéd ‘with the rest, but kept aloof as a stranger
looking on.  There was no Commander in Chief in the
Holkur afimy, nor any one capable of taking the general
diveetion of affairs in such a crisis, and of commanding
in the battle, but each Sirdar considered only himself,
and acted altogether without orders or concerf, as was
best for his own interest or safety: most of them kept
out of the way after the first shot from the British guns;
Bheem Singh Poorbeea, however, who commanded seven
or eight battalions, with Ram Deen, Roshun Beg, and

Roshun Khan, and other commandants, drew out their

troops, and determined to makea stand. They met the
advancing columns of the ¥nglish with so heavy a fire of
artillery, as fo shake their steadinegs, and very nearly to
win the day. But as they received no support from the
rest of the Holkur army, and as most of the horse wereat
a distance looking on, waiting ouly for the moment 1o run,
the battalions could not follow up the efect of the artil-
lery, by a charge at the favorable moment. In the mean
time, the English 'army, which had the bed of the river
for ‘a protection, with the power of drinking from it to
refresh themselves at pleﬂ.éure_, recovered their order
‘and remained'iirﬁr:,.aud at last one or two battalions
which had passed to theleft, mounted the bank, (*) and

(') The British army was formed on & sand, in the bed of the rivery
protected from the artillery by the overhanging bank. The Eavopeans

‘were on the extreme right, and on ascending through the ravines charged-

home to the guns, the space being only about three bundred yards, The
infantry breke, immediately the guns were reached, and there was a
general flight of all the Mabratta army, but in the advance the Brilish
trioops suffered very severely from the artillery. Tha batile was fought

on the 2ist December 1817, aud sixty-three guns were taken,

'BATTLE OF MUHEDPOOR, il ) YU
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advancmg, put the whole army of the M liharaj to route,
and a great slaughter ensued.  Herenpon Bheem Singh
"Huzavee, and the other Sirdars, who had exerted them-
selves with courage, and stood the brunt of the action,
seeing their own cavalry fly from the field, and the
Eﬂglisb regiments surrounding them, retired also, and
. their troops fell into confusion, and four or five thousand
men were cut to pieces.  Poor Siwaee Mulbar Rao
Holkur, a lad of tender years, who bad never seen an
action before, sought his safety by flight with a party of
horse,. Thus the English obtained a great victory, and
captured all the gnns of the brigades of Holkur's army.

Mulhar Rao fled to Purtabgurh, (') which is two or
three stages from the field of action.  General Sir
J. Malcolm, however, with the liberality of a great Chief,
made an offer of accommodation, and reSto_red Indor and
other territories of Holkur in Malwa, yielding a reve-
_ nue of ten or twelve lakhs of rupees, as a free gift to the
S young Raja, and a treaty was concluded on this basis ;-
! whereupon the young Siwace Mulhar Rao Holkur was
; brought to Ind‘éir, and kept there as it were in surveil- *
i lance, (Nuzurbund). Kureem Khan Pindara, who fled in
disguise from the field of action, and concealed himself,
was brought to Ogjein, and placed under restraint, until
the opportanity offered, of sending him with his family
i and children into the Gorukpoor Zila, where a Jageer
was assigned to him of sixty thousand rupees per annum
: for maintenance. General Donkin, who went into Kota
sl ‘With his army to meet the Pindaras, fell in with a body

L . b
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of them and dispersod them, and Cheetou-;gﬂ-; Rajun, and

some others of the Sivdars, were afterwards taken, or
surrendered themselves. These events oceurred in the'
year of the Hejira 1233. (*) '

e

A Chapter here follows, which professes to give shortly
the history of Bajee Rao Peshwd’s quarrel with the Bri-
dish Government, and of his defeats and final submission.

It is' ewtremely inaccurate, and writien evidently from
very imperfect hearsay evidence, besides whichk, the
matters related, have no connexion whatsoever with the
Ameer, or his concerns. It has, therefore, not been
thought worth while to translate it. We shall proceed
therefore to the last Chapler, whick contains an account
of the Nuwab Vuzeer-ood-Dould's wisit to Dehlee, and of
the issue of his negociation to procure Surther advartages
Jor the Ameer.

e e e b S

(') A, D, 1817—~12th November to 30th Ogtober 1818,

R
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BOOK THE TENTH.

CHAPTER THE LAST.

1818 to 1822,

The Ameer’s Son proceeds to Dehlee—remains there for
a year or more—is presented to the King—Returns
home-—having obtained a Jageer in liew of the Per-
guna of Sumbhul, promised to the Ameer during
the negociations-—Rejoins his Father at Tonk—nhis
marriage—arrangement o seitle the Territory—
Conclusion,

I+ was an article in the Treaty (*) concluded by the
Ameer with the British Government, that his son, the
Nuawab Vnzeer-ood-Doula Mohummud Vuzeer Khan,
should reside for a time at Deblee, where Sir C. T. Met-
calfe was Resident ;—this measure being looked upon as
calculated to strengthen the bonds of friendship and to im-
prove the good understanding it was desired to establish,
The young Nuwab, therefore, with his brother-in-law,

(%) Tt will be seen from the copy of the freaty, given ina preceding
note, that there was no atticle in it, providing for the Ameer’s son vesid-
ing at Dehlae, but it was an understanding that he should do so, and no
tll; ; ;ulty was made aboat his going, He arrived at Dehlee in February,
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Meean Syud Ulee Shah, proceeded to Dehlee, with a
few troopers, and a suitable retinue in other respects.

Upon his approach to the royal city, the Ameer’s Vukeel

negooiated with Sir C. T. Metealfe about the manner of
his reception, claiming for him honors commensurate with
the respect with which his father had been treated by Sir
David Ochterlony, to meet whom it was well known that
the General had gone out a distance of five kos from his
own camp. The Resident, however, pleading a press of
business, excused himself from the Istugbal, and sent
his brother, Mr. T. Metocalfe, to do the honors in his
place. This gentleman, accordingly, came out, and gave
the complimentary meeting to the young Nuwab with all
respect, and accompanied him to a house whicl had been
prepared for his reception, whence he afterwards took
him to the Residency, and presented him to Sir Charles
Metealfe. Here the Nuwab was treated with much dis-
tinction, and received presents suitable to his rank. On
the following day, the Resident returned the visit, when
the Nuwab made corresponding presents, and received
many cordial agsurances of regard.

There was a connexion subsisting between the Nuwab
Vuzeer-cod-Doula and Meerza Suleem, son of the reign-
ing King of Dehlee, on the strength of which, and of
assurances from the palace, of a desire that le should be
presented, the young Nuwab, with the sanction of the
Resident, was introduced to the Prince, and was treated
by him with much distinction, presents of arms of curi-
ous workmanship being made, and other marks of favor
bestowed on him. 'The Prince, indeed, on the strength

of the connexion before referred to, received the Nuwab

amongst his intimate friends : besides which, so long as he
remained at Dehlee, the Resident showed him always
30




G,

_ wery marked and particular attention, as if desirous to
"M reconcile him as far as possible to the separation from his
home. i - ;

Raee Data Ram, who had been sent hy the Ameer to
wait upon the Goveérnor General in'‘Gornkpoor; return-
ed about this time, and Sir C. Melcalfe being sum~
moned to the presidency, Sir 1. Ochterlony was ap=
pointed Resident at Dehlee, and vested with the Poli-
tical Charge of the Rajpoot States, besides retaining his
command of the armies in all those countries. = He
accordingly came to Dehlee, and the young Nuwab, wait-
¢d upon him. Soon afterwards, however, he proceeded
to Ajmeer, with his lady, to visit the holy shrines and
the other objects of note at that city. The Raee took the
opportunity of proceeding to Jypoor in the suite of the
General, and made a stay there for the purpose of settling
gsome affairs, The Raee afterwards continued his jour-
ney to Tonk, and had an interview with the Ameer,
whom he advised to move towards Ajmeer, for the purpose
of meeting the Gieneral. Sir David having passed Jypoor,
marched towards Kishengurh, and the two Suwarees met
not far from that town, where the usual compliments were
exchanged, and the Sirdars went on in company to
Kishengurh, and encamped together. Next morning,
they proceeded in company to Ajmeer, where they halted
for some days, and visited together the holy shrines, and
the other places worthy of examination at that city.
When Sir David returned, the Ameer came back with
him as far as Dodo Buchar, (*) and then with Race Data

' Ram, took his leave and returned to Tonk, while the Gene-
ral weat on to Jypoor, where he was detained some time,

S0 ()
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. The Ameer now sent Raee Data Ram to negociate for
his son’s return, and he remained in attendance on the
General, discussing this and other matters, and finally
returned with bim to Dehlee, where the negociation was
putin train.  In the midst of it, Bagee Mohummud Khan,
- Mohummud Saeed Khan, and other Rusaladars, raised a
disturbance at Tonk, reviving certain obsolets claims for
old arrears of pay. « They, moreover, followed the Gene-
ral to Jypoor, and importuned him with complaints. The
Raee was usefulin explaining this matter,and in procuring,
that the conplaints should not be listened to: But the
Rusaladars not satisfied, returned to Tonk, and were
there very troublesome: so much so, that in the Hejira
year 1234, the Ameer determined to move away to
Seronj, to settle the affairs of that territory. There he
staid for some time, but returned to Tonk by forced
marches, in the height of the following rains,

- The Perguna of Sumbhul, (*) in Rohilkhund, had been
promised in Jageer to the Ameer; at the time of con-
cluding the treaty with him, The English Gentlemen,
however, made excuses for not performing this promise,
and Pulwal, near Dehlee, was afterwards thought of in
substitution, but this too they determined to keep in their
own management, Accordingly Raee Data Ram, being
desirous to bring the negociation to a' point, took a
Sunud for a money payment of one lakh and a half

* (") The British Government never promised this Pergana, nor antho-
rized any of its officers to hold out to the Ameer any hope of obtaiving
it in Jageer. Sir David Ochterlony, however, committe himself by a
promisa of his good offices to endeayour to procure something of the kind,
and the Governor General acceded to the measure. It was inorder to
silence the Ameer’s importunities, and to satisfy the hopes thus exeited,
that a money pension was at last conferred on the Ameer’s son, atthe
. same time that Rampoova and Oonarsee were' transferfed to the Ameer,

and a debt of three Iakhs, for money advanced to ald in settlements with
Lis troops, was remitted. '
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of rupees in favor of the Nuwab Vuzeer-ood-Doula,
and then ohtained for him permission to return to his
father. Ile¢ received his audience of leave from the
General, and was presented with an elephant, a borse,
and other honorary presents, and then took his departure
from Dehlee, by the route of Rewaree and Jypoor,
bringing with him Raece Data Ram, and Meean Seyud
Tllee Shah. Raja Jugut Singh, of Jypoor, had died some
time before, and a posthumous son, the present Raja
Siwaee Jysingh, having been born to one of the Ranees,
the young Nuwab paid his devoirs at that Court to the
reigning Authority, and was honored with furilier pre-
sents ; after which, proceeding on his journey, he arrived
at Tonk, on the Oth of Zee Huj, (*) in the Hejira year

i 1284, and was restored to his father’s embraces to his
infinite delight. 'The Ameer then commenced regulating
the civil affairs of his different possessions, and in 1234
Hejira, he made a journey to Seronj, for the purpose of
putting that territory in order, but after a short stay, he
veturned to Tonk.

In 1237 Hejira, (*) being at the time with his son at
Uleegurh, which is the new name given to the place here-
tofore known as Rampoora, the Ameer was informed,
that Sir D. Ochterlony intended to pass through his
territory, on his way to the cantonment of Neemuch.
"Thereupon, first dispatching his son to give the General

- the requisite complimentary meeting, he proceeded after-
‘wards in person two kos on the road, and brought this
honored visitor into Uleegurh, firing salutes, and treating

(‘I)‘ A, D, 30th September, 1810, ‘The year 1234 Hejira, commenced
on the 31t October, 1818, and closed on the 19th October, 1519,

(*) A.D.1821, 20th September to 17th September, 1822.
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him with every possible distinetion, e entertained him
for three or four days, after which the Geeneral proceeded

on his journey. InJumadee Oos-sanee of 1237(") Hejira,

the Begum, widow of Bapoo Sindheea, deceased, sent
to negociate for the completion of the marriage, which had
been in agitation during that Chief’s life time, between
his daughter and the Nuwab Vazeer-ood-Doula, Every
thing being satisfactorily adjusted, arrangements were
made for the celebration of the welling, and it took place
_ with suitable magnificence, and was attended by many
Chiefs of rank, and great were the rejoicings and festivi-
ties, with which the ceremony was performed.

Since this period, the lifo of the Ameer has heen passed
in cultivating the arts of peace. Ifis days are spent in
the enjoyment of domestic happiness, and in the perform-
ance of all religious observances, such as listening to the
reading and interpretation of the Koran, or joining in
social and instructive discourse with the learned and
pious, who have found in his Court an asylum and honored
retreat.  He is, at the same time, serupulous in attending
tothe various duties of administration, in redressing wrongs
and administering equal jastice, and is constantly stadying
to promote theimprovement and prosperity of his territories.
Many are the buildings, the palaces, and places of worship,
with which he has embellished the City of Tonk, and the
other places, which he has made the seats of his occasional
residence. Many are the gardens, and the Gunjes, and
the Suraees, and the wells, which he has caused to be
constructed, for the accommodation of the public, and for
the convenience and comfort of his subjects, and of those
who live under his protection and government. The

! (") 24th Febraary to 24th March, 1822,

»
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deseription of all the works that have been executed, or

put in hand under his orders, would require the pen of

an accomplished writer, for like the virtues and amiable

qualities which distinguish himself among the Chiefs and

great men of his age, they surpdss the feeble powers of
- his humble admirers, ;

486 CONCLUSION,

This Chapter, and the Volume conclude with several
copies of Verses by the .Po_e%‘ Shadan, laudatory of the
buildings and wo_-'r%s referred to, or fixipg their date.
Last of all are three Odes, in celebration of the virtues
and_achievements of the Ameer, and one, to crown the
whole, addressed to the Ameer's som, the heir-apparent,
- Vuzeer-ood-Doula Nuwab Mohummud Vuzeer Khan.
The laudatory style of Persian verse cannot be rendered
into English, those who are curious in such things, must,
therefore, be conteni to exercise their ingenuity upon the
oviginal Persian, Qur task is done. :




A—

A ranans—their descent traced to Saul, king of the Jews, 2-—
conversion of the tribe to Mohummudanism, 4, H5—why called
Puthans, 5—Ameer Khan, of the tribe—his genealogy traced,
6,7—the Afghans inthe Ameer’s service matiny, 116—pun=
ished, 118—further mutinies and acts of turbulence, 177, 280,
805, 314, 321, 345, 375, 402, 407, 442, 457 - Afghans in Bapoo
Sindheea’s service spirited up to mutiny and won over,

349, 350.

A¥rAsian Kuan, Chela of Nujnf Khan-~his rise to power, 76—~
assassinated, 77.

AFzvLGURR—Ameer Khan defeated there by Genl, Smith, 257.

Aumep Kuan BunousH, Nawah of Furukhabad-his quarrel
with the Lukhnou Nuwab, 60, 61.

Auamury, Major, British oficer, opposed to the Aweer in Ban-
delkhund, 199—stated to have made offers to gain him
over, 285,

Axpug Monummup Kuan, an officer of the Ameer, 415, 420—
raised to command of a brigade, 452—takes the farm of
Nanwa, 433—called in to the siege of Jypoor, 450--can-
toned about Chaksoo, 455-—called in to the siege of Madhoo-
rajpoor, 468—his brigade broken upand its guns delivered, 468,

AmBatee INGLIA, left by Mahajee Sindheea to administer Mewar,
86—employed by Doulut Rao against Lukhwa Dada, 130
to 132—intrigues with Ameer Khan, 236—receives his family
and a brigade, 237—dismisses both on remonstrance from the
British, 238-—money extorted from him by Doulat Rao and
Juswunt Rao, 270, 271—regains favor with Sindheea, 272~
joins the Raja of Jypoor at the siege of Joudhpoor, 310—
intrigues there against the Amecer, 320—thwarls his views
with Bapoo Sindheea, 397—retires from Joudhpoor with
Raja Jugat Singh, 341 to 343.
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AMEErR KnaN, of the Afghan tribe, 1—his genealogy; 6, 7--birth
9--early propensities, 10, 12-—first military adventures, 13,
19-~serves Bhopal, Chap. 111 20 to 29-—joins the Keeohhee
outlaws, 30 to 87—~serves Bala Rao Inglia, 4l—againgt
Bhopal, 43, 44—Minister of Bhopal, 46 to 48-—quits Bhopal,
49—unites with Juswunt Rao Holkur, 96-~their firat enter-
prises, 97 to 101—-Muheshur taken, 101—proceedings there,
102 10 104~dxivenout by Chevalier Dudrenec, 108--Dudrenee
surrenders to him, 110-—proceeds against Sagur, 113-—cap-
tures the town, 114—is defeated by a force trom Nagpoor,
117—succoured by his. half brother, 118—pillages Shujaecl-
poor, 120=insulted at Holkuy's Durbar, 124--reconciliation,
125--hiz army defeated in his absence by Lukhwa Dada,
129-—operations against that Chief, 130 to 132~-Major Hess-
ing and Bulwant Rao Batkura defcated, 136 to 138—Holkur
and Ameer Khan defeated at Indor, 142, 148—the Ameer’s

_exertions to restore theiv affairs, 145, 146-—Depredations in
Mewar and Malwa, 147 to 150—movement on Kandeg, 152~
affairs with Sada Sheoo Rao, 157 to 159—warch on Poona,
16)~his part in the battle there, 168, 170, 173~concern in
overtures to Bajee Rao, and proceedings after it, 174, 175-=
pursucs Bajee Rao to Marh, 177--brings over his Sirdars,
180—expedition to Merich, 183-rejoins Juswunt ‘Rao  at
Aurungabad, 185—overtures made to gain him, 188, 189—his
adyice to Holkur as to conduct towards Sindheca and the
Ghoosla, 191—heads an incursion into Bundelkhund, 199 -
affairs about Tehree, 201, 202--advance to Koonch and
Kalpee; 205, ,208—retires again to Malwa,  210--captures
Bhilsa, 234-—marches for Bhburtpoor, 236~—intrigue  with
Ambajee Inglia, 287-—arrives at Bhurtpoor, 239—proceed-
ings there, 240—attacks convoys, 243 to 246-—undertakes
an incursion into Robilkliund, 249~reaches Moradabad,
253-is pursued, 264, 256-~overtaken and defeated, 257—his
flight from Rohilkhand, 261-~and return to Bhurtpoor, 264
assists in extorting money from Ambajee Inglia, 270—marches
with Holkur to Puteeala, 276—arrives at Lahor, 278—disap-
proves of Holkur’s peace with the British, 281 to 28—
mediates between Juswunt Rao and mutineers, 200-—defeats a
plot to poison him, 292, 203—employed to adjust terms with
Jypoor, 300—marries there, 301—sides with Jypoor in the
war against Joudhpoor, 304, 8056—interview with Juswunt
Rao, 309~joins the Jypoor army, 313—pursues Raja Man
Singh, 315—slighted by Raja Jugut Singh, breaks with him,
319 to 324—intrigues with Bapoo Sindheea, 326—afiairs with
Jypoor troops, 329, 333—defeats Sheeolal Bukhsheeo at Ma-
dhoorajpoor, 337—marches to relieve Joudhpoor, 340-—allows
Raja Jugut Singh to escape, 343—proceeds to Joudhpoor,
844-—circumvents Bapoo Sindheea, 349 and 350—Siwaee
Singh assassinated, 852 to 350-leaves Joudhipoor, 361--
settles the affairs of Holkur's camp on Juswant Rao's falling
insane, 366-—expedition against Nagpoor, 368 to 386—re-
duces Dhurman Chela, usurper in Holkur's camp, 391 t0 395~
warches towards QOodeepoor, 396—interview and agreement
with Muharana Bbeem Singh, 899--advises the poisoning of

488 INDEX.
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his daughter, 400—arrangement with Joudhpoor, 401--and
- Jypoor, 405~receives Kureem Khan Piadara, 407--under-
standing with himy, 409-sends svecour to Gurakota, 411-—
proceeds to Joudhpoor, 412 —advice to Raja Man Singh,
414 —returns to retrieve aliairs in Jypoor after Chand Singh's
| suecess, 416—establishies garrisons and cantonments there,
419—operations in the Shekhawatee eountry, 420, 421=-sct-
tlement with Jypoor, 422-attends the meeting of Rajas
Jugut Singh and Man Singh, 423, 424-—recoives overturcs
from Shah Shooja-ool-Moolk and from the Baloochee ruler,
495, 426—and from Sindh, 427—rejects them, concerns with
Jypoor, 429—expedition into Bikaneer, 431—~arrangements
on decease of Mohummud Shaly Khan, 433--—proceeds to
Joudhpoor and intrigues against Singee Induraj, 434, 435
assassinates him and Raja Man Singh’s Gooroo, 437, 440-—
operations agoiust Shekbawut Chiefs, 449, 445—advance to
Jypoor, #8--sicge and ombardment of the city, 449 to 452—
raises the sioge at the Rana’s request, 453—rayages Joudh-
poor, 466--lays seige tO Madhoorajpoor, 450--fasts in two
storms, 459, 461--treats with the British Government, 463-—
#  meets General Ochterlony, 465-~ratifies his Vukeel's treaty,
466-—-measures to exeeute it 467 to 470—sends his son 1o
Dehlee, 480—final settlement and employments at Tonk,
485, 456. g

ARrcam, battle of 196,

Aspronata Punpiv, Gooroo of Raja Man Singh of Joudhpoor,
assassinated with Singee Induraj, 434 to 440,

Assye, batile of, 194,
B.

Bakee, of Juswunt Rao Holkuar, see Tovlsee Race,

Barrs, of Mahajee Sindheea, oppose the accession of Doulut Rao,
#7 (Note) separate from bim and fly to Oojein, 126--circum-
vented and pillaged by Juswunt Rao Holkur, 127, 128.

Bases " Rao, first of ‘the name, succeeds his father as Peshwa,
H4-invades Bundelkhund, 53, 56 -obtains Qojein and Malwa,
57 —approaches Dehlee, 58-~his death, 58.

Baiee Rao, sonof Rughoonath Rao, his accession, 89, 90-~rejects
avertures from Juswunt Rao Holkar, 162, 174-—{lies to Marh
after the buitle of Poona, 175—to Bombay, and signs the
tresty of Bassein, 180—excites Mahrattas and others 1o rise
against the English, 465, 474, !

Bauasee Punpir, first Peshwa, 62-his death, 54.

Baraseg, called Nanha, succeeds his father Bajee Rao as Peshwa,
- BB--dies of grief for the disaster of Paneeput, 65.

3r
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Bara Ram Serm, a minister of Juswunt Rao Holkur, employed
in negociations with Lord Lake, 280, 282-promoted on
Juswunt Rao’s falling insane, 366~-put to death by Toolsee
Baee, 472, |

e | m,n_‘nx':

Bara' Rao Incria, Awmeer Khan's first adventore with him, 27 ~-

; his' proceedings against the Keechhee Rajpoots, 32 to 35—
operations against Shujaelpoor, 40--und Bhopal 42, 43, 46—
interferes to prevent the Ameer from plundering Jhansee,
119-—employed against Juswunt Rao Holkar, 150, aids in the
extortions from Ambajee his brother, 270. VR

Baroo SiNpHELA, an oficerand relation of Doulut Rao, distinguish-
" es himsell in the battle of Bhopal, 46—~in the ' battle of Deeg
with Huprnath Chela, 229 -——engaged with Ameer Khan in
theé attack of a convoy at Bhurtpoor, 242-—sent with the
Ameer having Inglia in charge to Kota, 27 1-employed with
Bala Rao Inglia’s troops as auxiliaries to Jypoor against
Joudhpoor, 326—intrigue of Ameer Khban to gain him,
thwarted, 827--breaks up from before Joudhpoor, 342—
circumvented and sent out of Marwar by the Ameer, 3498
350, 351-~marches to Jawuadh, interview there with the Ameer,
388 retaliates on the Ameer for 4be plunder of one of his
villages, 456—his dangliter married to the Ameer’s son, 485.

Barriste, Jeay, sonof Michael Filoze, commands & brigade of
Doulut Rao Sindheea’s, 140-—defeats a division of Holkur's
troops under Nuwab Shuhamut Jung, 210-——employed with
Bapoo Sindheea against Joudhpoor, 850-~induced by the
Ameer to retire, 551, i

Bassery, (Busye) treaty of, concluded by Bajee Rao, 180.

Bevee Sincn, commander of Nagpoor troops, sentio relieve
Sagur, 115-—defeats the Ameer, 116, 117, '

- Biarvrn | Sinen, a’ Chief of Jypoor, holding Madhoorajpoor,
defies the Ameer, 458-~holds out on siege for nine months,
409 to 462—an arrangement patched up with him, 465,

Bupeyn Siver, Mila-Rana of Oodeepoor, 2056-~his 'daughter
solicited by the Rajas of Joudbpoor and Jypoor, 206-—
quarrel with the former, 296, 207—Ameer Khan's interview
with him, 898, 309—poisons his daughter, 400,

Buooanee SuNkUR Buknsuer, an officer of Juswunt Rao Holkar,
aids his escape from Nagpoor, 93—at the battle of Poona,
167—eniployed against Colonel Monson, 210—deserts to the
English, 268. -

Buorar, state of affairs there in 1704, 20—the Ameer enter-
tained, 20 —adventures there, 21 to 27—Mooreed Mohammud

. ostablished in power, 27, 28, 20—~intrigues there of Golee
Khan and Vuzeer Mohummud, 42, 43--Bala Rao Inglia

%
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‘. obtains the forts, 43--attacks the town, 46—the J}:n'ger in
power, 47, 48-—resigns to Vuzeer Mohummud, 48--See Viuzeer
Mohwmmud, ' :

BHURTPOOR, affairs of, 61, 63—Bhao Bhaskur sent by Juswunt
Rao Holkur to negoviate with the Raja, 223—General Lake’s
arrival before it, 233—siege, 230 Lo 240, 264, 2656 —the Raja
makes peace with the English, 267.

Brownrica, Major, an officer of Sindhcea, 139—mainly instru-
mental in gaining the battle of Indor, 142, 143,

Buaspvr Lay Siven commands a brigade uader Mohummud
‘Shah Khan, 331-detached to Meertha, 347 —made Raja,

361 ~ detached to Oodeepoor, 396 -~ disobeys a summons
from the Ameer, 402--rejoins Mohummud Shah Kban, 402—

left to blockade Lawa, 411-<hiz troops mutiny, and march
towards Bhurtpoor, 414-~brought back, defeat Chand Singh,
416—stationed in Jypoor, £19—-beats off Chand Singh, 420
~employed at the siege of Jypoor, 448, 449, and Madhooraj~

®  poor, 458~his guns given up and the brigade dishbanded, 468,

BuLwuxt Rao BATKURA, an officer of Doulut Rao Sindheea,
134—sent against Juswunt Rao Holkur, 135-—defeated at
Oojein, 137, 138,

C.

Cuanp Sivau, a Thakoor or noble of Jypoor, 411—fakes the field
and gains advantages over Mohummud Shah Khan, 414,
415—his affair with Buhadur Lal Singh, 416—retires to Jy-
poor on the Ameer’s arrival, 417-—attacks Lal Singh again,
420~—expelled from Jypoor by intrigue, 422—takes partin
the defence of Jypaor, 448, .

CunuTuk 8L, Raja of Bundelkhund, invites Bajee Rao Peshwa,
&4, 65—adopts him and divides his territory, assigning one
fourth to Bajee Rao, 56—bis sons quarrel after his death, 56.

CunvTor Sar, Raja of Duttea, gives refuge to Lukhwa Dada,
132—killed at the siege of Seonda, 132,

Cuuvtur Sivcu, KoONWUR, i, e. heir apparcat of Joudhpoor,
urges Ameer Khan to effect the ruin of Singee Induraj, 434.—
administers affairs at Joudhpoor, 456, 460.

Caimna Ara, brother of the first. Bajee Rao Peshwa, actsin
subordination to him, d4-~dies childless haying adopted
Suda-Sheeo-Rao Bhao, 58.

(Cuna Ara, son of Rughdunath Rao and brother of the second
Bajee Rao Peshwa, 76—attempted to be set up by Nanha
. Phurngyees instead of his elder brother, 89,

8L



@L

Crmmxa Buao, an officeriof Jusgwunt Rao Holkwr, 122; 128--in the

'« battle of Poona, 167--employed at Bhiurtpoor, 248--consulted

. ‘@about the Aracer’s opposilion to the peace with the British,

281—employed against Bheels, with secret commission to get

. vid of Kashee Rao Holkur, 363-—executes it and is recoived

with honor, 364—employed in the ministry on Juswant Rao
falling insape, 366. /0w e (T

192 i L

Crose, Colonel Sir Barry, Resident at Poona when occupied
by Juswunt Rao Holkur, 176-concludes the treaty of Bassein
with Bajee Rao, 180-—commands a British army that marches

. from Jalna to Seronj aguinst the Ameer, 386-—gives up fur-
ther pursait, 388, j R A !

D. f i

Dara 8pap Kuan, Rusaladar of the Ameer, 805, 372, 877, 382 -

coneerned in a mutiny, 402—favored in a Settlement with

- Jypeor, 405=~-detached into Mewar, 406—killed in action at
Kudumgurhee, 412, 0000 e i A

Dawes, Captain, commands 2 brigade of Doulut Rao Sindheea,
15%-—~employed againgt the Ameer in Kandes, 159—Kkilled at
the battle of Poona, 173, ' e o

DeBorene, Bexoir, refuses to entertain the Ameer, 14--lis rvise
in Mahajee Sindheea’s service and employments, 79, 81, 86,

Dere, battle of, 228-—captured by the English, 230--restored by
treaty to the Bhurtpoor Raja, 267, 1

Duorvr Sivewn, alleged posthumous son of Raja Bheem Singh,
of Joudhpoor, 8l1-~his cause espoused by the Jypoor Raja,
812—carried off from Nagorafter Siwaee Singh’s assassina-
tion, 360, : '

DuurMaN Cuers, raised to command in Holkur’s army by the
Ameer, 366--usurps the entire nuthority, 386-—the Ameer
takes the field against him, 390~delivered up by his troops,
394—and put to death, 895.

Dongiv, Major-General Sir Rufane, advances with an English
division from Agra to Kota, 463.

Doonvee Knan, Zumeendar of Kumona, in the Dooab, under
siege, relieved by the Ameer, 251 —re-visited by him on re-
twrn, 261-—-0n expulsion by the British obtains Hindoun from
the Ameer, 414—ejected again on settlement with Jypoor, 422,

DoorsuN SarL KEEcHHEE, in possession of Seronj, 29--an outlaw
with Raja Jysingh, 30, 8i-—quarrel, 33—and reconeiliation
with him, 36— friendly towards Mohummud Shah Khan, when
dismissed by Ambajee [nglia, 238—Namdar Khan, Kareem
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7 Khan Pindara’s licutenant, made over'to himx by Anieer
|1 Khan, 410, . /) gctsres fnuaie: by dhars g DA IR

Doviur Rao Sivpurea, his accession, 87-intrigues against

- Naonha Phurnuvees, 89--tuing and imprisons him, H0--attacks
and kills Mulhax Rac Holkur, 20, 9l-—proceedings againsg

the Baces and Lukhwa Dada, 126 to 132-sends a force |

against Juswunt Rao Holkur, 184—follows, 140--and drives

' him out of Malwa, 140 to 160—marches into the Dukhun
. after him, 184, 190-~séttles his differences with Holkur, 192
defeated by General Wellesley, 194 to 196-~makes peaco
with the English, 197-advances towards Bhartpoor to join
 Holkur, 267—aids in extorting money from Ambajee Inglia,
270~further treaty with Lord Lake, 273-—ejects the Jypoor
troops from Qodeepoor, 207—his armies join Raja Jugut
Singh against Joudhpoor, 312-—jealous of the Ameer's being
engaged by the former, 319--orders succour to the Ghoosla
when pressed by the Aincer, 385—retires to Gwalior, 395, 306,

DupreNec, Chevalicr, (called Hujur Beg) serving at Muheshur,
opposes Holkur's and Ameer Khan's designs thereon, 99~ hig
detachment defeated at Kusrod Ghat, 100—abandons Muhe-
shur, 101 —~adyances to recover it, 104=-defeats Juswunt Rao,
106—redueed for want of supplies, 109~takes service with
Juswunt Rao, 110--and is sent to Tonk, 111.

DunrvresHes, Anecdotes of, 10, 23, 27.

DurTEA, Raja, (Chhutursal) receives Lukhwa Dada when press-
ed by Ambajee and Monsieur Perron, 131-—Kkilled in the siege
of Seonda which ensnes, 132,

E.

Eesuuree $ivon, Raja of Jypoor, his accession, 58—opposed by
his brother Madhoo Singh, and the Mahrattas, 69-—poisons
Keshoo Rao, is deposed, and himself swallows poison, 60.

Erravl Rao, or Betnjee, full brother of Juswunt Rao Holkur,
90-—his death, 174—(Note), :

EreuinsTonNe, the Honorable Mountstuart, opposed to Bajee Rao
at Poona, 464—etfects his downfall, 470.

F.

Firoze, Colonel Michael, an officer in the service of Mahajee
. Sindheea with Doulut Rao, in the operations against General
" 'Wellesley, 193—see Baptiste, :

Fraser, Genenar, defeats Hurnath Chela at Deeg, 228, 220—is
okilled in the battle, 230.

FurugsABAD, Ahmed Khan Bungush, Nuwab of, his quarrel with
the Lukhnou Nuwab, 60—Mulhar Rao Holkur called in,
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expels and makes terms with the Chiefs, G-I»J.Tusw{mt Rao.
' Holkur entertained by the Nuwab,, 226 —surprised there by
. Lord Lake, 927, i P

494 _ INDEX.

" Furen Siven Manveea, an officer of Juswunt Rao Holkur, suocess-
ful against Bajee Rao Peshiwa’s troops, 160-~(Note) coms«
mands the infartry at the battle of Poona, 165, 167—deteoted
intriguing, aod setzed by the Ameer’s order, 186, |

Fyzoorta Kuan Buncusu, an Afghan Officer in the Bhopal
service, 23-—sent by Ameer Khan against Bhilsa, 199.—his
. troops desert to Baptiste, 211-~takes a farm of Bhilea, 234-+
with the Ameer in the Rohilkbiund expedition, 253 254
urges a return to Bhartpoor, 261~ further services, 408 farms
the revenues of Sambhur, &o. 438, 458 —goes overto the Eng-

G.
Gauna—Kashee Rao Holkar cbnﬁned there, 119,

Guoray Kavir Knan, son of Zaheta Khan, his vige, 79~-joins
Ismael Beg and Ranu Khan, Sindheea’s General, at Koomper,
80—dofeated, flies to Dehloe, and is received by the king,
H0-~discovers a correspondence with Mahajee Sindheea and

. puts out the King’s eyes, 81-—driven out of Dehlee by Maha-
jee's troops, flies to Meeruth, 82—is seized and executed, 83,

GrovamMER Knan, an officer of Ameer Khan’s, employed to ascer-
tain Juswunt Rao Holkur's condition, 95-~advises breach of
faith with Ubhajee, of Sagur, 115—Ieft in command of the
Ameer’s troops, and defeated by Lukhwa Dada, 129--a chan-
nel for overtures from the Nizam, 187-—employed by the
Ameer ag agent in Holkur's camp, 204—detached with a
separate ¢ommand into Kool, 220—intrigues to supplant the
Ameer, 234—spnt 1o make submissions to him, 240-—brings
message from Raja Man Singh to the Ameer, 318-—again, 323,

GHoosLA, or Bhoosla—see Rughoojee.

Guous Monummup, son of Hyat Mohommud, Nuwab of Bhopal,

obtains the rule on Chhotee Khan's death, 20, 21 —slights the

Ameer and Raee Himmut Raee, 22-courts the Ameer and

sends him fo relieve Hoshungabad, 24— Mooreed Mohum-

i mud’s intrigue against him, 26, 27--succeeds, and he is im-
! _ prisoned, 29,

Guuroor Kuawn, called also Mohummud Ghufoor Khan, an offi-
cer of the Ameer, 860, 863—created Nowab Iftukhar-ood-
“Doula, and left as the Ameer’s agent in Holkur's camp, 366—
rejoins the Ameer, being turned away by Dhurman Chela,
390—left to manage the Jageer conferred by the Bace on the
Ameer’s son, 305 Kurcem Khan placed under a guard of his
troops, 410~his intrigues in the Holkur camp, 472, 473—



ERDBRA . 1495

/0 makes termy for himself with' the English, and obtains
Vuzeor-cod-Doula’s Jageer, 474, 470—his conduct in the
battle of Muhedpoor, 477,

.Gmné Kpan;, a t_:h-ié-f-of the Bhopal family, 42--asgociated with |
. Nuzeer Mohummud, 43. ! '

G_.UJ}!. Komrwﬁn_;,;ex—(ﬁhie’fnf Shujaelpoo:;, intrigues ag;ai nst Ameer
Khan at Holkur’s Durbar, 121-—breeds ill-will between the
chiefs, 122, 123-«insults the Awmeer in Darbar, 124, |

-~ Guneur RAc made Dewan upon Juswant Raoe Holkar's insanity
1 Cbeing) deelared, 866-—secized by mutineers, 471 — Toolsee
' Baee betrays her affection for him, and procures his release,
872-=seized and confined by the troops before the battle of
Muhedpoor, 476.

.

Harping, Captain, commands Holkur’s infantry at the battle of
Poona, 164-—(Note).

HessiNG, Major, an officer in Doulut Rao Sindheea’s service,
" 1834-—sent’ against Juswant Rao Holkur, 186—is defeated,
137, 138+~surrenders Agra to Lord Lake, 208—(Note).

HoLrur-—rise of the first of the family, 53—See Mulhar Rao,
T'ukovjee, Kashee Ruao, Juswunt Reo, e, §e.

‘Hosnunaasap besieged by Nagpoor troops, 24—Ameer sent from
Bhopal to relieve' the place, 24—gets into the town, 25—
surrendered nevertheless, 26. :

. Hurnara Chuera, an oficer of Juswunt Rac Holkur, 122, 142
detached in command of the infantry 1o Deeg, while Holkur
ravages the Dooab, 225—defeated by Geucral Fraser there,
22810230, 1 ol ?

Hyar Monummup Kuan, Nuwab of Bhopal, 20-his son rules in
his name, 20 to 24—his Begnm's ascendancy, 26—intrigues to
restore him to power, 42—Ameer Khan rules in his name,
4d—transfers him to Vuzeer Mohummud, 48, 49, ’

I.

INCHORKUR, (called Vinshorkur) a Mahratta Jageerdar of Kan-
des, defeated by the Ameer, 153, -

_ Inpor, grantied by the first Bajee Rao to Mulhar Rao Holkur,
. b7—Juswunt Rao Holkur defeated there, 142, 143, X
INDURAS, Singee, Bukbshee of Jondhpoor, 317—surrenders the
. city, and raises the country towards Ajmeer agaiust the
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" Jypoor Raja, 818—joins Ameor Khan on his breaking with
that Rajn, 926-bis plans, 3%i—meets Ameor Kian after his
victory of Madhoorajpoor, 330 —virges attack of the Jypoor
army on' its rétreas, 343--made Dewan of Joudhpoor, 84d-

o Raja Man Singh dissatisfied with him, 414 <brings aid fo the
Ameer and negociates peace with Jypoor, 421, 422-nego-
ciates for evacuation of Meertha, 431—intrignes against him
at Joudhpoor, 433-the Awmeer plots hig: ruip, 435, 436~
causes him to be assassinated, 437 to 440, A

s,

I;\'GLI_A,-—.sée Ambajee and '.B'aIIaIRt_m.

Tsman Bee Kiav, in league with Joudhpoor, 14—joined by the
Ameer, 15-his rise, 76, 78.~connected with Gholam Kadir,
. BO—makes separate terms with Mahajee Sindbeen, 82, !

J.
JATS=ste Bhurtpoor.

Jeewa Dapa, an Ofiicer of Mahajeo Sindheea, employed against
Gholam Kadir, 81-—Ileft to administer affairs in Hindoostan,
86-~in the action ut Lakheree with Tukovjee Holkur, 57,

Juansee threatened by the Ameer, bui saved by Bala Rao
Inglia, 119, o i

Jones, Major-General, commands the Bombay army, sent into
Hindoostun, 237 joins Lord Lake, 26d—commands a storm
at Bhortpoor, 265—cantoned at Tonk and Rampoora, 273.

Jones, Captain, beats off the Ameer near Kalpee, 209.

JoupmProor, affairs of, 66, 85 200, 315, 456, 460--the Ameer takes
soryice there, l-Jyapa Sindheca’s expedition against it,
G6--besieged by Haja Jugut Singh, of Jypoor, 317 —Ameer
Ig_iimt;]’s Journeys thither, 315, 344, 360, 412, 434—sce Man

ng .

JuBULPOOR ocoupied by the Ameer, 372--abandoned, 375.

Jueur Sineu, Raja of Jypoor, enamoured of the Qodeepoor
“Princess, 206--receives the Ameer and settles for the Holkur
tribute, 300~-declares war against Raja Man Singh, of Joudh-
poor, on acconnt of the Princess, 304—tukes the field with
an immense army, 312—Man Singh retires beforve him, 315~
invests Joudhpoor, 817—takes the city and lays siege 1o the
fort, 318—slights the Ameer who scparates his troops, 321—
detaches a force after him, 325--on its defeat breaks up from
Joudbpoor, 341—and retives precipitately to Jypoor, 843
conduct at the siege and bombardinent of his eapital, 461, 452.

Jumsneen Knan, Rusaladar of Afghans, in the Ameer’s service,
157—conduct at the bLattle of Poona, 168, 169~serves with
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kel Ameer in Bundclk]mnd 205~ and ‘at Bhurtpoor, P43
e and in Rﬁbllkhund 266, 2a7~—cscapes thenege with him, 261 .-
ongaged in a mutiny at Joudhpoor, 314-again, aud quits the
0 Ameer’s, service, 346--serves under bhim in the expedition
. 0 against Nagpoor, 372~negociates with Sidq Ulee Khan,
| 873-insabordinate conduct, 374-~left in command in Me-~
Lwar, 401--tnuﬂmeq againgt Mohummud Shah Khan, 407 —
(employed in the Shekhawatee country, 43 l*wursted there,
443—sucoonred by the Ameer, 444--employed in the siege of
Jypoor, 448, 450-~ditto of Madhoorajpoor, 458 —asserts inde-
‘pendence, and refuses his guns to the British, ‘169-»-5‘131{{8 on

i campulslun, 470,

Juunoomn HINDHEEA, his nse, 63, 64—(see Note at page 53)
, killed at Paneeput, 63,

Juawum Rw Howrxur, natural son of Tukoojee Holkur, 90«
escaped from the attack of Mulhar Rao, butis seized and
confined at Nagpoor, 91 — escapes, 93 first adventurves,
94, 95-—joined by Amecer Khan, 97~-operations to the taking
of Muheshur 97 to 102—driven out again, 105 to 108—Du-~
drenec comes over and restores it, 109—loses an eye, 110~
hears of the Ameet’s defeat at Sagur, 113—conceives jealousy
of him, 121--meditates treachery against him, 122, 123—
-recomlhatmn 125~—circumvents, 127-—and pluudbm Mala~-
jee’s widows, 128-—actys against Lukhwa Dada who gives
them réfuge, 130--defeats Majnr Hessing and Bulwunt Rao
' Batkuara at Oojein, 136, 138—is defeated at Lodox, 142, 144—
and driven out of Malwa, 150—enters Kandes, ]52——malrch
on Poona, 152—gaing the battle of Poona, 162 to 172-—~re-
tires from Poona, 184—settles his quurrel with Siodheea,
192—marches towards Hindoostan, 202, 212—surprises Cap-~
tzun Lucan, 2156—and surronuds and hana.ssea Colonel Mon-
son’s retreat, 217 to 221—harasses Lord Lake’s march to
 Dehlee, 223 to 225--incnrsion into the Dooab, 226—routed at
Fatehgurh, 227 —retired to Bhurtpoor, 231—gats away with
loss on the Raja’s making terms with Lord Lake, 268—cxtorts
money from Ambajee Inglia, 270-—moves towards the Punjab,
275—deceives the l’utceala Raja, 276-~iuntrigues at Lahor,
277—~sigus peace with the 'Eng!isb, 280 1o 285—ill-treated by
wutineers, 289—suspicions and designs aguinst the Ameer,
202—intrigues at Pookur, 300-—poeisons Khgndeée Rao, 307—
interview with the Ameer, 308—puts to death Kashee Rao,
364—falls insane, 365 his death, 406,

Juwanun Sixeu, Raja of Bhurtpoor, son and successor of Sooruj
Mul, 64—nided by Malhar Rao Holkur, takes Agra, 65.

~ Jyara SixpuEEA, son of Ranojee, attacks Joudhpoor, 66--assas-
. sinated by R: aja Bijye Singh, 67-(see Notes ai puges 53 and
66, for doubts as to lis parentage ).

JY?DOIl*Eﬂ‘{llul‘eﬁ Singh succeeds Siwaee Jysingh as Raja, 58~
‘Madheo Singh calls in the Mahrattas, 59--and succeods on

3 Q

]
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- Ecshurce Singl’s taking poison, 60— Purlab Singh Raja, 77 -
defeats Mahajee Sindheea, 78—ill-will agaivst the Rathors,
84-~its tribute, the cause of quarrel between Tukoojee Hol-
kur and Sindheea’s Oflicers, 86, 87—war of Jypoor with
Joudhpoor about the Qadeepoor Princess, 304 to 344—Ameor
Khan’s concern with, 338, 405, 415, 419, 422, 429, 448§—be-
sieged and bombarded by him, 448 to 453—~Raja Jugut Singh

‘suceeeded by a posthumous son, 484, Ll | |

JysiNon Keecanee, Raja of Raghoogurh, an exile, living by

- plunder, 30-joined by Ameer Khan, their adventures, 31 to

3o~-makes terms with Bala Rao Inglia, 35—treacherous con-
duct towards the Ameer, 36, |

K.
Katrer plund'ared by the Ameer, 208.

Kasape Rao HorruRr, eldest son of Tukoojee, suceeeds his father
as ‘head of the family, 90--with Doulut Rao Sindheea’s aid
surprises and kills his brotuer Mulhar Rao, 91—deserted by
his troops, and imprisoned by Juswunt Rao, 119—-put to
death, 364. | . -

Kesnoo Rao Kuurree, agent of the Dodespoor Rana, with Mul-
har Rao Holkur, 59--poisoned by Eeshuree Singh, of Jdy=
poor, 5.

Kunerrie, in the Shekhawatee Country, Ameer Khan serves Raja
Bhag Singh there, 14, } '

Kuuspee Rio HorLkur, son of Mulbar Rao, killed at Koomber,
G4~—his widow Ableea Bace adopts Tukoojee Holkur, 68.

Kununoee Rao Houkur, son of Mulbar Rao, killed at Poone, a
child sent to Aseergarh, 91l—Juswunt Rao procures his
release, 191~taken as a hostage by mutineers, 290~ poison-
ed by Juswunt Rao, 307, W

Kuyrar Museen, of European descent, in the Jypoor service,
J36—carries off his corps unbroken at the battic of Madhoo-
rajpoor, 397, f !

Kisnen Koovares, Princessof Oodecpoor, sought in marriage by
the Rajas of Joudhpoor and Jypoor, 205, 206—Ameer Khan
advises her father to put her to death, 399-~heroic conduct
in taking poison, 400,

Kureem Knan PINDARA serves with the armies of Doulut Rao
Sindbeea, 140, 147 --detached with Sudasheeo Rao into the
Dukhun, 150—collects troops, is defeated and takes refuge
with Ameer Khan, 407—committed to Ghufoor Khan's custody
at Bhanpoora, 410—escapes from the defeat at Muhedpoor,
478--submits and accepts a Jageer in Gourukpoor, 478,



Kurus Deen Knan, the Ameer’s hall brother, Jjoing hing, 19 1]

exarts himgelf to defend the Ameer against the Keechhees, . W

| 36—sent to Bhopal to recrait, 39— effocts the passage of the ! ]

. Nurbuda, 98 —left with Juswunt Rao Holkur, while the

| Ameer proceeds against Sagur, 112--brings timely succour

0 after the Ameer’s defeat by the Nagpoor army, 118—punishes

Jthe wmotinous Afghans, 118--killed in atterpting to save
Shujaelpoorx from pillage; 120. i

L.

| Lage, General, Lord, takes the field in Hindoostan, his sugceases,
ol 202, 208-—marches against Juswant Rao Holk ay, 212—halts
at Lal-Sonth, sending on Colonel Monson, 213-——again ad-
vances to repair the disasters of his retreat, 229—his march
from Agra to Dehlee, 223 and 224—pursues Holkuar info the d
Dooab, 226—sarprises him at Fatehgurh, 227, 228--marches to bt
Deeg, 280—captares it and proceeds to Bhurtpoor, 230, 233 — Pl
makes offers to Ameer ¥han, 235—fails in the storm of
 Bhurtpoor, 240, 242—operations before thé place, 249
joined by General Jones and fresh storm resolved upon, 264—
\ Tails, 265-—makes terms with the Raja, 266,267 dispositions
afterwards, 273—follows Holkur to the Punjab, 278-—con-~
cludes peace with him, 282,

Laknener Guar, defeat of Tukoojee Holkur there, in 1793, 87.

Lucay, Carrain, commanding a eorps of British irregular horse,
employed with Colonel Monson, 213—attacked and killed by y
Juswunt Rao Holkur, 216, 217,

Lucunyuy RAG, Jageerdar of Muheeputpoor, sent against the
Keechhee outlaws; 30—defeated and slain, 81. -

Lukawis Dapa, Ameer Khan’s first adventurs with him, 27
. employed with him, 27-—cmployed against Gholam Kadir by
Mahajee Sindheea, 81--engaged: in the affair with Tukoojee
Holkar at Lakheree, 87—takes part with the Baees of Ma-
¥ hajee Sindheea against Doulut Rao, 128—defeats Ameer
i Khan's army, 129-besieged in Shahjebanpoor by the Ameer,
Holkuar, and Ambajee Inglia, 130--allowed by the first named
to escape, 131-~flies to Seonda in Dutten, 132-—is besieged

there by Ambajee and Perron, 132. i

M.

MApHooRAIPOOR, in the Jypoor territory, besieged by Ameer
Khan for nine months, 458 to 461 -

Mabsoo Rac Prsuwa, secand son of Balajee the second, suoceeds
“ his father, 65—his death, 68.

Mabdiioo Rao Nurayow, posthanious son of Narayun Rao, 74—
made Peshwa, 74~makes war onthe Nizaw, 88—his death, 89.

]
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Mapsoo Siveu, Raja of Jypoor, disputes the succession with
- Beshurée Singh, 50-~raised to the Musnud by Mulhar Rao
Holkur, 60-—ejects Holkur's garrison from Tonk, 65—
again, 67. " ! )

- ManAjer SINprEERA, natural son of Ranojee, suceeeds as head of
the family by support of Nanha Phurnc vees, 68--sent against
Puthurgurh, 69-—subdues the party of Mamajee Phatkura,
i2—makes peace with the English, 76--recovers Gwalior and
Gohud. 76-—invited to Hindoostan, 77--fails against Jypooer,
T8e-further reverses, 70—resumes the offensive, 80-—sends a

Aurce to Dehlee against Gholam Kadir, 81, 82—subdues and
execntes him, 83—sends DeBoigne against Joudhpoor, 85—
and recovers Ajmeer, 86—retarns to the Dukbuaand dies
there, 87. .

Marcory, General Sir John, advances with Sir Thomas Hislop,

against Holkur’s Troops, 4638--intrigues with Ghunfoor Khan,

474-—gains the battle of Mabedpoor, 477—makes peace with
Holkur 478. Ly | '

Man Siven, Raja of Joudhpoor, claims the hand of the Oodee-
poox Princess, betrothed to his predecessor in the Raj, 205
the Rana promises herto the Jypoor Raja, 206—enmity of
the rival Chiefs, their measures and intrigues, 297, 208~~his
ipterview with Holkur, whose family he had received during
the English ‘war, 299—war declared between Jypoor and
Joudhpoor, 304-~Man Singh tries to gain Ameer Khan, 306,
807--deserted by his army at Purbutsir, 314—flies to Joudh-
poor, 316-retires fo the fort and stands a siege, 318—gaing
the Ameer, 323-—is relieved by his victory at Madhoorajpoor,
34d—quells a meeting of the Ameer's troops, 346—interview
with the Ameer after Siwace Singh’s assassination, 361-—
fresh terms adjusted with the Ameer, 401—reception of the
Ameer, 413—negociations for peace with Jypoor commenced,
421~-concluded, and interview of ManSingh with RajaJugut
Singh, 423-Intrigues of Koonwur Chhutur Singh, &ec.
agaivgt him, 433-~retires from aflairs on the assassination of
Singce Induraj and his Gooroo, 440.

MavnaIEe PHATKURA, said to be legitimate heir of the Sindhceas,
68—supported by Rughoonath Peshwa, 71--hig party defeat-
ed by Mahajee, 72. ]

Marn, in the Konkun, Bajee Rao, vetires thither after the battle
b of Poona, 176—surrendered to Ameer Khan, 179,

Merprza SABIR BEe commands a corps in the Jypoor service, 333,
wounded in personal combat with the Ameer, 334, 335.

Mentas Knax, Colonel, commands a brigade of Ameer Khan’s,
331, 382, 414, 415, 433, employed in Shekhawatee, 419, 420
—receives the title of Roshun-ood-Doula, 45_5—attackeq by
Hunwunt Singh Chela, defeats him, 446--employed against
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. andhe brigndo disbanded, 468,

MEeTcALrE, Mr. now Sie ¢, T., with General Smith, jin Rohil-
khund, 254—deputedto the Camp of Juswunt Rao Holkue
by Lord Lake, 284—retires satisfied, a88~concludes Treaty

. at Dehlee with the Ameer's agent, 463-—alleged further pro-
o misesand assurances, 466—receives with attention the Amesr’s
~ son, 481—suceceded in office by Sir D, Qchterlony, 482,

Misur SHEEONURAYUN, ex-minigter of Jypoor, intrigues 1o restore

‘him, 421--summoned by the Ameer on account of Nuzurana

| promised, 428-~gettles the claim, 429,

 MonumMup AvAz Kuan, Rusaladar in the Jypaor service, Ameer

Khan marries his daughter, 301—sent to negoeiate with the
Ameer, 330—gots & Jagoer from Raja Man Singh, 347--his
. 4ent resorted to by assassins, d54-~employed in Kooroo, 363
w—disagrees with Colonel Molun Singh, and comes to the
Ameer to complain, 396~—appointed to command Mohun
Singh’s Brigade, 409-~employed against Jypoor, 410~ awempt
. on his life at Kishengurh, 415, B

Monusmud Suan Kian, a Puthan Soldier; his first promotion,
| 112—further confidential employ, 120—sent fo dig, for trea-
gnre, 15d—created Colonel and placed in command of a
Brigadey, 180~=loft at Koorwaee Bbourasa while the Ameex
invades Bundelkhund, 204-—rejoined by the Amecr, 210—
‘placed with a Brigade and the Ameer’s family in charge at
Ambajee Inglia’s disposal, 287—obliged to shift for himself,
238—dismissed from Doulut Rao Sindheea’s service, b JONS
_sent by the Ameer to Seronj, 275-—summoned to take part

in operations against Jypoor, 321--battle of Madhoorajpoor,
332 to 357-—employed to inveigle Biwaee Singh, 352—gives

his oath against treachery being intended, 853—brings Siwaee
Singh to the interview at which he is assassinated, 357, 358
re-called from Joudhpoor, 401-—releases Ameer Khan from
Dhutna, 405-~is himself subjected to it, 407.—besieges Lawa,
406, 410—warsted and shut up in the fort of Tonk by Chand
Singh, 415—relieved, 416-—-detached in command at Hindoun,
419—opposes the Ameer's designs on Kabool and Sindh,
496--masters and occupies Meertha in Joudhpoor, 430—{alls

gick and dies, 432,

Mosaun Siven, an officer of the Ameer’s infantry, raised to the

vank of Colonel, and left in command in Kooroo, 361—

quarrels with Mohummud Ayaz Khan, and complains, 396
entertained by Raja Bishun Singh, of Boondee, 401--employ-
ed with the Ameer, 403, 404~—the troops excited to mutiny
against him, 408—resigns, his brigade given to Mohummud
Ayaz Khun, 400,

Monson, Colonel, sent by Lord Lake against Juswunt Rao Hol-
. kur, 212—advances into Kotah, 214-—xetires on Holkur's

]

Jypoor, 'm-éﬁf_ationed at Hindoun,4656=-his guns sarrendered

gy
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- ;'---approach, @15-~disasters of hig retreat fo Agva, 217 to 220
commands under General Frager at the battle of Deeg, 229
(Note). : | i

Moonuwur Knan, a connexion of the Ameer by marriage, 321~
appointed Amil of Seronj, 321--retires, but is surprised by
Colonel Close; 388—superceded, and sent for to camp, his

Jsevvices there, 418, 419 —re-appointed to Seronj, 440,

Monapasap occupied by the Ameer, 253—his proveedings there,
2054, 258,

‘MooreEp Moavuuup KAy obtains anthority in Bhopal, 26, 28

invites Ameer Khan, 42--surrenders the forts to Bala Rao
Inglia, 43--death, 44—(Note).

MoosueER-00L-MooLk, minister of the Nizam at Hyduarabad,
186 —his overture and intrigue with Ameer Khan, 187, 188.

 MuHEDFOOR, batile of, 477, 478,

Mungsuur granted to Mulhar Rao Holkur, 57—ocenpied by
Juswunt Rao, 10l—abandoned to Chevalier Dudrenec, 108-—
re-taken, 110—Juswunt Rao remains there, pending Sin-
dheea’s campaign against Sir A, Wellesley, 192, 195,

e Tt
\f o

Muruar Rao HoLkug, his rise, 53—obtains Muhesh#r and Indor

in Jageer, 67—acts against Jypoor, 59-—ditto Farukhabad,
60, 6l—cscapes from the battle of Papneeput, G3-—attacks
Bhurtpoor and loses his son, 64—recovers Tonk, &o, from
Jypoor, 66—again, 67-—dies near Jaloun, in Bundelkhund, 68,

Munsoor Uik Kuan, of Lukhnou, opposes Bajee Rao’s passage
of the Jumna, 57—quarrels with the Nawab of Furukhabad,
60-calls in Mulhar Rao Holkur, 61.

Mugoun SINGH‘, Raja of Guriakota and Mundela, 235-<joins the
Ameer in ocperations against the Ghoosla, 370-—pressed by
Nagpoor troops, is succoured by the Ameer, 411,

N.

Nacoo Puxpir, an officer of Holkuy’s, acts with the Ameer in
" Kandes, 1565 to 158.

Naupar KuaN Prypara enters the Jypoor service with Ameer

Khan, 307 — introduced by Ameer Khan to Dooyjun Sal

- Keechhee, 409—and sent to act with him against Doulut Kao
Sindheea, 410. : '

Nasua--name given to Balajee Peshwa, son of Bajee Rao, 58.

Navua PrurNuvees, Dewan of Madhoo Rao Peshwa, confinued
in power after his death, G8-—intrigues against Rughoonath

B
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49 to 14la—gair 1 fho baitle of Tndor, 143, 14d—advance
join Helkur a Thrtpoor, 286-—intrigues ‘with the Amee
1 at Joudhpoor, 824 --leayes the Jypoor camp with him, 525~
hlh a,rtﬂw is subscqaent proosedings, 329-+-in the battle o
- ' iMadhoorajpoor, 333, A i S e

iy oo, (Raul) the ﬁﬁpé‘étﬁf-ﬂf -t‘l_zlg.;&_fg}qans,‘: AL Y

| Mantera Joa, employed in a gibordinate capacity in the mini
L0 fermed on Juswunt Rao Folkur fulling insane, J6G-ommn

| ed by Toolsee Baec to seize Hala Ram Seth, 472 5eize |
the troops, 476, SN L e A R B il

ALEEKUR, AT officer of Fnuswunt Rao’s court, 184w{li

on g-g;z_atti_a;q{it' td?‘sgi‘ﬁu_-him; - AR

L8 ‘Elﬂmp.wido“ of Juswunt Rao H’r}l-ku_r; ap'p_lies fo Amear
Chan for relief from Dhurman Chela, JBG—disavows the
Chela to the troops, who imprigon and put him to death,

| Gunput Rao, and puts to death Bala am Seth, 472 —deserted
by the infantry battalions and Ghufoor Khan, 473~-régon-
‘ciliation, she  declares  for Bajee Rao, 474--marches to
Muhedpoor, 475-—put to death by Flurce Holkur, ,76-_.@. A

<00JEE EHoLkuR, adopted by Ahleca Bace, as succassor to Mul-
' har Rao, 68--associated in Mahajee Sindheea’s operations.in
il Hindooston, 86—defeated b, ' his Generals at Lakheree (that,
. 87--atthe battle of Kurdla, in the Dukhun, 88-his deatl, 90
i | . U.. ":.Ij"""'f' ! [/ SN J

_-:I;‘UIGR!?T .'"i:ho, adoptcd son of Rﬁ'gl_mldﬁﬁth_'ﬂéa,' piaced 'i,im fhe

" Peshwa's Guddee by Jaswunt Rae Holkur, 175—~demands of

. Bolkur upon hit, 176, 181-—accepts a stipend from the Bri-
\'..,; N , "L I il R L A ,-.\\l?‘l: iy .. ] .

Yuiﬁéﬁu Monunmup, of Bhopal, his rise, 42, 4 45— i3 worsted in

 then resigns in his favor, 48, Ug—join:in " 1€er’s eXpe-~

' dition against the Nagpoor Raja, 380-—dis....des from an
atthek on Sidq Ulee Khal which fails, 381-his condact in
the action, 283-=Namdar Kban recommended 1o him byithe.

4. Amcer, 410, AAraiAra & Sl AR A

M

Yuzeer-oop-Dovta Monuwsmun Vuzenr Kuan, the title and

804, 395--poisons Meena Baeo, 471-—betrays her love for,

Taction with Bala Rao Inglia, dg—the A Lbor"  plants, and |

“ Unmame of Ameer Khan's sldest son, his birth, 339-—sont for to

) "’”‘—‘-":&mkota. 371=ditto_t¢ Oodeepoor, 397~Jagecrs conferrod
. on kim by Raja Man Sivgh, 847~by Toolsee Bace, 895—scni
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